Franklin Family Researchers United

Volume 26 July 1999



Walter James Franklin and Becca Jane (McFarland) Franklin, Wedding Portrait, June 1916

About the Cover

Walter James Franklin and Becca (McFarland) Franklin Wedding Portrait

This photo was taken in 1916, probably in Springfield, Greene County, Missouri. It is a scan of a color Xerographic copy of the photograph.

Walter was born 16 Apr 1892 in Springfield, Greene County Missouri, second child, oldest son of Edward Grundy Franklin and Ella Louvina (Buck) Franklin. Ella died young and Edward began drinking. He often beat Walter. When Walter was 10, it was so severe that Walter left home and lived with an uncle. When his uncle moved to Oklahoma, Walter moved with him. He invited his sisters to join him in Oklahoma and at a young age, they were on their own. They worked hard, growing and picking cotton to make a living. When his father, Edward, became ill in 1914, Walter returned to Springfield to stay with him. His father soon died, but while there, Walter met Becca Jane McFarland, whom he married on 26 Jun 1916. Walter moved back to Noble, Oklahoma, where Becca soon followed. Later her parents (who lived near Springfield, Missouri) also joined them when they moved from Noble, Oklahoma to Norman, Oklahoma. Walter and Becca had 11 children, 9 of whom lived to adulthood. For 32 years there was at least one family member attending Norman High School. Walter died 17 Feb 1972. Becca died 6 Mar 1987.

Written by Ben Franklin, grandson of Walter James Franklin, editor FFRU.

Table of Contents

About the Cover	2
Editor's Message	4
Past Issues	6
FFRU Charter	7
Franklin Marriages in Hawaii	8
Franklin Marriages in Idaho	8
Franklin Marriages in Illinois	9
Franklin Marriages in Indiana.	13
Franklin Marriages in Iowa.	13
Franklin Marriages in Kansas	16
Franklin Marriages in Kentucky	17
Franklin Marriages in Louisiana	20
Franklin Marriages in Maine	20
Franklin Marriages in Maryland	21
Franklin Marriages in Massachusetts	25
Book Review: The Family and Ancestry of Sims Kelly Franklin and Margaret Virginia Chapman	26
Book Review: The Crenshaws of Kentucky, 1800-1995	27
Book Review: The Cleveland Line	28
Henry H. Franklin (born 8 Jul 1832)	29
Using the LDS IGI and the Ancestral File in Your Research	37
Queries	39
Names Index	40
Places Index	47

Editor's Message

I mentioned in a previous volume that I would be going to Salt Lake City. I had 4 days to research in the world-famous Family History Library. I spent about a day-and-a-half among the surname-oriented books. These books have all been moved to the Joseph Smith Building, about a block away from the main library. At first I was disappointed that these were located in another building, had different hours, etc., but after I got used to the new environment, it was nicer than being in the main library. I stayed in the Temple Square TravelLodge. It is an older place, but the rates weren't too bad (for the height of the tourist season), and it's just across the street from the FHL. I ate at the nearby Dee's restaurant which is a family-owned local chain, similar to Denny's or Shoney's. There's a lot of construction going on in the area right now, so the usual serenity of the area was missing, but I still enjoyed my visit there.

The Joseph Smith building (formerly known as the Hotel Utah) is newly-renovated. Because it was away from the main library, there really weren't many patrons there, and in fact there were almost always more librarians than patrons there while I was visiting. They closed at 9:00 p.m. (rather than the 10:00 p.m. of the FHL) The copy machines do not accept coins, so you have to keep track of the number of copies that you make. It really was a pleasure to work there.

While there, I viewed many of the 135 books which are listed under the Franklin surname in the Family History Library Catalog (FHLC). A copy of the Franklin FHLC listing is available from the FFRU website. I discovered that quite a few of the books listed for Franklins had little or nothing to do with Franklins, and I will be annotating the Franklin FHLC printout to reflect this.

Starting in this issue, I am including book reviews of the books which I found there.

This is the third issue which contains extracts of the LDS Vital Records Franklin marriages including the states of Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine and Maryland, and Massachusetts.

Several subscribers from 1997 informed me that they had not received their copies of Volumes 22 and 23. We regret this oversight. Elaine Giddens has now corrected this for all those who were overlooked. If any more of you out there, please let me know.

New Policies

Oh! I almost forgot! I've had come up with some new policies for the newsletter.

Financial Statement

The last volume of the year will include a complete financial disclosure of the dealing for the previous year. The FFRU is completely accountable to its subscribers and donors. I know of no better way to accomplish this than to show how your money has been spent. A copy of this will also be posted on the FFRU site.

Hardcopies and Softcopies of the FFRU Newsletter

Subscribers receive a hardcopy of the newsletter - If you do not subscribe, you can still receive a copy of the newsletter by downloading it and printing it. Newsletters will be released via the FFRU

website 2 years after they are released to subscribers. Release schedule:

Vol 24 - Jan 2001 Vol 25 - Apr 2001 Vol 26 - Jul 2001

In order to encourage more submissions, there will be an exception to this. Submitters of articles (not just queries) will receive a free hardcopy of the volume of the newsletter in which their submission appears, or a PDF copy, whichever they prefer.

You will note that there are many past issues of the newsletter which are still not available on the website. Once I get this volume mailed out, I will be able to return to the task of re-indexing and releasing these.

I know that some of you prefer softcopy and do not want a hardcopy. There are several advantages to the softcopy version: 1) You can cut-and-paste data and narratives into your genealogy program, and 2) it doesn't take up very much physical space. By the same token, there are several disadvantages to the softcopy: 1) You need a computer to read it 2) It is lost if you have a harddisk crash. If you are a subscriber and you prefer to receive the newsletter in softcopy form, please let me know.

Another benefit to subscribers is that their queries are given priority. I receive many queries, in fact, too many to properly respond to all of them. Subscriber's queries always get priority over any other queries. An example of this was that when I visited the Family History Library in Salt Lake City in June of 1999, I did research for several subscribers to answer specific queries. I am working my way through all of queries which subscribers or contributors have sent me. For non-subscribers, I will perform an in-depth search of the research materials in the FFRU library for \$5.00.

Visit the FFRU Website at:

http://www.geocities.com/Heartland/Park/4723/

Ben Franklin 5847 Sandstone Drive Durham, NC 27713-1925 benz2@earthlink.net

Past Issues

Past issues of the newsletter are also available:

Volume	Pages	Cost
Charter	97	7.50
Ancestral Lineage Cross Reference (1993)	14	2.00
Pedigree Volume (1993)	211	15.00
First 5 years Index (Vols 1-20)	56	5.00
1 - 22, 24, 25	53 (avg)	5.00
23	145	10.00
Andrea Papers (6 parts and index)	173	12.50
Entire Collection through volume 23	1642	140.00

The prices listed above include postage in the continental US.

Please note: These have been reformatted slightly by the software that I use, and re-indexed. A comprehensive index will also be available when I have reformatted all of these. If you have the originals, which Elaine published, I would not recommend that you purchase another copy. I have called my version "2nd Edition". For most of these, if you want a copy of the original, you may get it directly from Elaine - she still has back issues.

I have been responding to queries for free for many years. Starting in July, 1999, queries regarding my personal lines will still be free. All searches for FFRU subscribers will continue to be free. Searches for nonsubscribers will be 5.00 each. This is in keeping with the policies that Elaine used and is in harmony with the fact that these queries are using up more and more of my time, which reduces the time I can devote to the interests of FFRU.

Franklin Family Researchers United

FFRU Charter

Ben Franklin, Editor 5847 Sandstone Drive Durham, NC 27713-1925

Dedicated to the research and preservation of the surname

Franklin

Organized January 1991

Purpose:

- To unite and assist those researching the Surname of Franklin
- To publish a quarterly consisting of Franklin Research in January, April, July and October.
- To maintain a computer database of the Franklin Surname and allied lines for the assistance of Franklin Family Researchers United members.
- To provide focus reports, pedigree charts and family group sheets of computer databases (which consists of 200,000 Franklin and allied names) free of charge to FFRU members. These reports are provided for nonmembers for \$5.00 per search plus 10¢ per hardcopy page. All search fees will be used to purchase source materials for the benefit of all FFRU members.
- To encourage all members to submit any well-documented Franklin research for publication.
- To encourage all members to submit pedigree charts, family group sheets and any other materials that will assist us in maintaining and updating our computer database.
- To solicit unlimited queries from members as well as non-members. These queries will be published, at the discretion of the editors, free of charge and must have a Franklin connection.
- To encourage members to submit family publications (or any other books deemed of interest to other members) for review in our quarterlies. Books submitted for review becomes a part of FFRU Library after being reviewed.

Regarding conflicting information, I will be unable to arbitrate disputes. The single best way to resolve them is by collaboration and sharing of source documents. Researchers can then weigh the facts and present their reasoning and conclusions. This is a very important function of this group.

Franklin Marriages in Hawaii

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the sixth in this series. The first five articles were in FFRU Volume 24 and 25.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, G. B.	, Kauhi	3 Apr 1851
Franklin, G. B.	, Kauhi	1851
Franklin, John Antone	, Kalaniumi	1838
Franklin, Lemi B.	, Kealo	1851

Franklin Marriages in Idaho

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the seventh in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Ada County, Idaho		
Franklin, David	Cook, Anna A.	20 Jul 1884
Bingham County, Idaho		
Franklin, Nathan G.	Wilbur, Laela Francis	20 Mar 1886
Idaho County, Idaho		
Franklin, Lizzie	Cully, Leroy	21 Jul 1888

Franklin Marriages in Illinois

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the eighth in this series.

Franklin, Amanda Gales, Scipio H. 6 May 1896 Franklin, Benjamin Jones, Matilda 25 Oct 1880 Franklin, Benjamin Jones, Susan 8 Sep 1881 Franklin, Charlie Hill, Jossie 24 Aug 1890 Franklin, Cora Hughs, John 20 Apr 1896 Franklin, Eliza Shelby, John D. 20 Feb 1890 Franklin, George McClelen, Ida 11 Jul 1891 Franklin, Lizzie Smith, George T. 23 Oct 1892 Franklin, Louisa Ware, William 9 Dec 1879	Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Benjamin Franklin, Benjamin Jones, Matilda Sep 1880 Franklin, Benjamin Franklin, Charlie Hill, Jossie 24 Aug 1890 Franklin, Cora Hughs, John 20 Apr 1896 Franklin, Eliza Shelby, John D. Franklin, George McClelen, Ida 11 Jul 1891 Franklin, Lizzie Smith, George T. 23 Oct 1892	Alexander County, Illinois		
Franklin, Benjamin Franklin, Charlie Hill, Jossie 24 Aug 1890 Franklin, Cora Hughs, John 20 Apr 1896 Franklin, Eliza Shelby, John D. Franklin, George McClelen, Ida 11 Jul 1891 Franklin, Lizzie Smith, George T. 23 Oct 1892	Franklin, Amanda	Gales, Scipio H.	6 May 1896
Franklin, CharlieHill, Jossie24 Aug 1890Franklin, CoraHughs, John20 Apr 1896Franklin, ElizaShelby, John D.20 Feb 1890Franklin, GeorgeMcClelen, Ida11 Jul 1891Franklin, LizzieSmith, George T.23 Oct 1892	Franklin, Benjamin	Jones, Matilda	25 Oct 1880
Franklin, CoraHughs, John20 Apr 1896Franklin, ElizaShelby, John D.20 Feb 1890Franklin, GeorgeMcClelen, Ida11 Jul 1891Franklin, LizzieSmith, George T.23 Oct 1892	Franklin, Benjamin	Jones, Susan	8 Sep 1881
Franklin, Eliza Shelby, John D. 20 Feb 1890 Franklin, George McClelen, Ida 11 Jul 1891 Franklin, Lizzie Smith, George T. 23 Oct 1892	Franklin, Charlie	Hill, Jossie	24 Aug 1890
Franklin, George McClelen, Ida 11 Jul 1891 Franklin, Lizzie Smith, George T. 23 Oct 1892	Franklin, Cora	Hughs, John	20 Apr 1896
Franklin, Lizzie Smith, George T. 23 Oct 1892	Franklin, Eliza	Shelby, John D.	20 Feb 1890
, ,	Franklin, George	McClelen, Ida	11 Jul 1891
Franklin, Louisa Ware, William 9 Dec 1879	Franklin, Lizzie	Smith, George T.	23 Oct 1892
	Franklin, Louisa	Ware, William	9 Dec 1879
Franklin, Mary J. Kaufman or Coffman, Henry 16 Oct 1867	Franklin, Mary J.	Kaufman or Coffman, Henry	16 Oct 1867
Franklin, Mizzeller Chappel, Ed. V. 4 Jul 1893	Franklin, Mizzeller	Chappel, Ed. V.	4 Jul 1893
Franklin, Moses Gasaway, Cordia B. 16 Aug 1897	Franklin, Moses	Gasaway, Cordia B.	16 Aug 1897
Franklin, William Rice, Annie 20 Feb 1890	Franklin, William	Rice, Annie	20 Feb 1890
Bond County, Illinois	Bond County, Illinois		
Franklin, John William Keller, Susan 1 May 1889	Franklin, John William	Keller, Susan	1 May 1889
Boone County, Illinois	Boone County, Illinois		
Franklin, William A. Booth, Helen M. 19 Oct 1854	Franklin, William A.	Booth, Helen M.	19 Oct 1854
Calhoun County, Illinois	Calhoun County, Illinois		
Franklin, Thomas B. Batchelder, Sarah 10 Apr 1867	Franklin, Thomas B.	Batchelder, Sarah	10 Apr 1867
Clark County, Illinois	Clark County, Illinois		
Franklin, Irvin H. Dover, Laura A. 21 Dec 1892	Franklin, Irvin H.	Dover, Laura A.	21 Dec 1892
Franklin, John Wesley Johnson, Mary Luella 17 Jan 1889	Franklin, John Wesley	Johnson, Mary Luella	17 Jan 1889
Clay County, Illinois	Clay County, Illinois		
Franklin, Andrew D. Kuhlig, Susan 11 Jan 1877	Franklin, Andrew D.	Kuhlig, Susan	11 Jan 1877
Franklin, Benjamin Elie, Mary 25 May 1888	Franklin, Benjamin	Elie, Mary	25 May 1888
Franklin, Daniel C. Landreth, Mary 20 Mar 1865	Franklin, Daniel C.	Landreth, Mary	20 Mar 1865
Franklin, Elizabeth Hoherbauch, August 25 Mar 1877	Franklin, Elizabeth	Hoherbauch, August	25 Mar 1877
Franklin, Emma Chaney, Newton J. 18 Nov 1879	Franklin, Emma	Chaney, Newton J.	18 Nov 1879
Franklin, General McCraw, Amanda 5 Feb 1882	Franklin, General	McCraw, Amanda	5 Feb 1882
Franklin, Harriet Rodgers, James A. 7 Sep 1884	Franklin, Harriet	Rodgers, James A.	7 Sep 1884

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, John Wesley	Baldwin, Sarah	24 Dec 1861
Franklin, Louisa E.	Miller, Henry	4 Oct 1863
Franklin, Margaret E.	Workman, William W.	6 Dec 1892
Franklin, Mary Ann	Williams, Reece	9 Oct 1881
Franklin, Matilda	McCooper, William	5 Jan 1870
Franklin, Nancy A.	Patridge, Jacob	6 Nov 1870
Franklin, Rachel	Cox, William	22 Nov 1878
Franklin, Rachel	Creech, John	19 Dec 1866
Franklin, Rachel E.	Romine, Benjamin F.	9 Sep 1893
Franklin, Samuel	Lowrey, Emma	2 May 1869
Franklin, Sarah E.	Davidson, Daniel	6 Dec 1892
Franklin, Susan	Manning, James H.	24 Apr 1882
Franklin, William	Tacket, Sarah	31 Mar 1862
Franklin, William	Waldon, Martha J.	23 Jan 1867
Franklin, William Carter	Smith, Mary Ann	17 Aug 1879
Franklin, William M.	Romine, Stella M.	22 Oct 1893
Coles County, Illinois		
Franklin, Charles J.	Tucker, Fannie B.	26 Dec 1880
Cook County, Illinois		
Francklyn, George E.	Clark, Frances M.	2 Apr 1873
Franklin, Albert	Endicut, Mary E.	20 Jan 1886
Franklin, Albert	Olstad, Elena	24 Mar 1886
Franklin, Bella	Michalsohn, Isaac	4 Jul 1886
Franklin, Charles	Adams, Lettie	30 Mar 1892
Franklin, Charles J.	Martin, Jennie Mrs.	27 Mar 1886
Franklin, Clinton	Crawford, Sylvia	27 Apr 1892
Franklin, Dennis	Murnane, Mary	5 Dec 1888
Franklin, Frances	Cook, Edwin	7 Jul 1890
Franklin, George E.	Medley, Mary or Mattie	5 Jan 1875
Franklin, Gustaf	Schenk, Elin	8 Aug 1893
Franklin, Henry B.	Mayer, Hanna	28 Jul 1872
Franklin, Isaac J.	Samuel, Sarah H.	18 Apr 1886
Franklin, Jay A.	Conn, Anna	20 Sep 1893
Franklin, John	Johnson, Sadie	20 Dec 1888
Franklin, John C.	Murray, Lizzie A.	27 Dec 1890

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Kate	Root, George W.	3 Apr 1877
Franklin, Mary	Barnett, David	24 Feb 1884
Franklin, Mary	Palm, Peter	18 Oct 1881
Franklin, Mary Honara	Gibson, James D.	9 Apr 1874
Franklin, Mattie	Love, Eddie B.	26 Dec 1893
Franklin, Nathan E.	Keller, Ada F.	14 Sep 1893
Franklin, Rachel A.	Gadney or Gedney, George I.	3 Oct 1872
Franklin, Sallie	Butler, Jesse J.	9 May 1888
Franklin, Sarah A.	Bunker, Eli H.	9 Nov 1871
Franklin, Sigmund	Derdiger, Paula	11 Sep 1895
Franklin, Thomas	Barnett, Gillard	26 Jul 1893
First United Methodist Church, E	vanston, Cook County, Illinois	
Franklin, Rachel A.	Gedney, George I.	3 Oct 1872
Crawford County, Illinois		
Franklin or Nidy, Sarena J.	Merrett, William	2 Dec 1894
Franklin, Charles	Shepherd, Mary Ann	26 Oct 1864
Franklin, Edward	Barbee, Elizabeth	28 Sep 1897
Franklin, George	Kinmon, Lizzie	Jul 1891
Franklin, James or George O.	Merritt, Sarah E.	25 Dec 1887
Franklin, Mary Ann	Nidy, Frank	23 Nov 1876
Franklin, Ora M.	Brown, Harry Clifford	21 Dec 1898
Franklin, Sarah	Corbin, Harvey E.	7 Nov 1883
Franklin, Sarah Jane	Ayers, Joseph	23 Jan 1874
Franklin, Serena J.	Nidy, William	30 Jun 1878
DeKalb County, Illinois		
Franklin, Henrietta	Emison, Charles	17 Sep 1843
Du Page County, Illinois		
Franklin, Samuel W.	Clark, Mary	1 Jan 1852
Edwards County, Illinois		
Franklin, John M.	Mitchell, Eva	14 May 1893
Franklin, Rowena V.	McClure, William A.	16 Mar 1892
Gallatin County, Illinois		
Franklin, Ellen	Gough, Thomas	16 Aug 1862
Greene County, Illinois		

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Permelia	Hondashelt, Henry	23 Oct 1838
Franklin, Smith	Gamble, Josie	20 Jul 1891
Franklin, William	Upton, Lavinia	25 Dec 1827
Hancock County, Illinois		
Franklin, Lena	Ogilvie, G. W.	12 Mar 1903
Iroquois County, Illinois		
Franklin, Benjamin	Waugh, Louvina	24 Dec 1885
Franklin, Charles I.	Lord, Ada	9 Mar 1879
Franklin, Edwin	Coons, Mina	24 Dec 1873
Franklin, Ida May	McCuen, Samuel J.	9 Jan 1889
Franklin, Jennie L.	Vanderpoorten, Eugene C.	2 Dec 1890
Franklin, John	Pruitt, Mary	9 Dec 1866
Franklin, Mary	Potter, George B.	30 Sep 1891
Franklin, N. E.	Anthony, Grace G.	8 Jul 1874
Jackson County, Illinois		
Franklin, Benjamin N.	Laswell, Elizabeth	7 Oct 1856
Franklin, Daniel	Hickman, Permelia	31 Dec 1852
Franklin, Elizabeth Ann	Asberry, Isaiah	23 Aug 1866
Franklin, Esom	Herring, Virinda C.	15 Nov 1864
Franklin, Francis M.	Bays, Leucinda A.	6 Sep 1875
Franklin, Francis M.	Casteel, Mary A.	12 Jul 1869
Franklin, Frank	Harrison, Nancy E.	15 Oct 1877
Franklin, Martha Jane	Dawn, William	18 Jun 1862
Franklin, Mary A.	Walker, James A.	14 Jan 1861
Franklin, Mary P. F. C.	Vanover, Hezakiah C.	13 Oct 1876
Franklin, Timothy S.	Rouse, Lucinda	12 Jul 1869
Jasper County, Illinois		
Franklin, Edith	Perrine, Hugh E.	18 Apr 1900
Franklin, Isaac Newton	Myers or Rudesill, Mollie A. E.	8 Dec 1878
Jersey County, Illinois		
Franklin, William	Ohaver, Gena	7 Dec 1878
Johnson County, Illinois		
Franklin, Mariah	Batey, William H.	25 Feb 1869
Franklin, Martha J.	Luns, Robert B.	26 Sep 1872

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Kane County, Illinois		
Franklin, Barbara	Lieb, John	19 Nov 1883
Franklin, Isaac N.	Adams, Maria C.	21 Mar 1853
Franklin, Mile	Johnson, Murdic	9 Feb 1871
Knox County, Illinois		
Franklin, G. W.	Sears, Mary F.	9 Oct 1862
Franklin, Isaac W.	Washington, Elizabeth J.	5 Apr 1870
Franklin, Loui	Boyer, Edwin	27 Jun 1869
Franklin, Mattie	Reynolds, Stephen	8 Dec 1870
Tazewell County, Illinois		
Franklin, Benjamin B.	Merning or Joycelin, Eveline	24 Mar 1881
Franklin, Ellen	Finks, Frank	29 Feb 1872
Franklin, William H.	Noe, Kate B.	3 Dec 1873
Franklin, William H.	Robison, Mary A.	8 Sep 1891

Franklin Marriages in Indiana

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the ninth in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Parke County, Indiana		
Franklin, Elizabeth	Derr, Bosten	7 Mar 1836
Franklin, Ulissius	Cabbage, Lucretia	1 Aug 1841

Franklin Marriages in Iowa

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the tenth in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Appanoose County, Iowa		
Franklin, Arthur W.	Hough, Ida V.	18 Oct 1898
Franklin, Lucas A.	Belknap, Lucinda	6 Apr 1870
Franklin, Nattie M.	Hellyer, J. B.	27 Oct 1881

FFRU Vol 26 - Page 13

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Thomas S.	Stevens, Flora E.	21 Sep 1893
Black Hawk County, Iowa		
Franklin, Edward A.	McCall, Cora Belle	24 Feb 1886
Franklin, Hattie L.	Murphy, George S.	31 Jan 1872
Franklin, John F.	Teeter, Nancy M.	31 Jan 1884
Franklin, Ludern C.	Smith, Alice L.	2 Nov 1895
Franklin, Mary E.	Wright, William J.	8 Nov 1886
Franklin, Morgan H.	Riggs, Laura Minerva	11 Sep 1887
Franklin, Rosa M.	Searles, George W.	9 Sep 1886
Franklin, Saphrona	Davis, Billings T.	30 Oct 1866
Boone County, Iowa		
Franklin, Elizabeth	Stanfield, S. T.	11 Sep 1873
Franklin, Lulu A.	Rice, James F.	18 Nov 1885
Bremer County, Iowa		
Franklin, Albert H.	Piegors, Emma M.	8 Oct 1896
Franklin, Flora	Kimbal, William P.	23 Dec 1884
Franklin, George	Wade, Mary Elizabeth	29 Jun 1881
Franklin, George R.	Hazlett, Mary E.	1 Dec 1886
Franklin, J. Benjamin	Mills, Anna Preston	26 Sep 1897
Franklin, James	Howe, Eliza	16 Jan 1868
Franklin, James C.	Green, Anna	29 Nov 1892
Franklin, Jennie E.	Meier, Fred W.	15 Jun 1884
Franklin, John B.	Davis, Ida S.	22 Feb 1883
Franklin, John H.	Zwanziger, Amanda	4 Apr 1900
Franklin, Lottie M.	Tidmarsh, F. J.	7 Jul 1887
Franklin, Thomas Arthur	McCumber, Ella May	14 Nov 1892
Franklin, Walter A.	Wescott, Maude	27 Feb 1899
Cherokee County, Iowa		
Franklin, E. A.	Smith, Mary	25 Dec 1894
Henry County, Iowa		
Franklin, Emma F.	Garvin, Samuel W.	5 Sep 1867
Humboldt County, Iowa		
Franklin, Arthur D.	Seaver, Adda Marion	5 Sep 1889
Franklin, Cynthia	Davenport, Roscoe H.	27 Mar 1895
-	-	

FFRU Vol 26 - Page 14

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Lucy A.	Reeves, Charles Edward	25 Nov 1896
Franklin, Sadie C.	Telshaw, John	22 Feb 1888
Johnson County, Iowa		
Franklin, Lizzie J.	Marshall, William G.	30 Nov 1887
Mills County, Iowa		
Franklin, Annie	Clay, William H.	24 Nov 1898
Franklin, Mary Edith	Harvey, Bonnie E.	1 May 1898
Montgomery County, Iowa		
Franklin, Lucinda	Bernard, Daniel	3 Jul 1874
Muscatine County, Iowa		
Franklin, Ammitta	Proctor, James Edwin	13 Aug 1890
Franklin, Anderson	Eyeman, Elizabeth	25 Oct 1855
Franklin, Clarence	Desbro, Jennie	17 Sep 1895
Franklin, Dianna	Stevenson, Silas	12 Apr 1852
Franklin, G. W.	Sanders, Mary E.	26 Nov 1890
Franklin, George E.	Miller, Minnie	14 Nov 1895
Franklin, Irene or Lorenia L.	Mockmore, Charles M.	27 Nov 1889
Franklin, James A.	Cooper, Elizabeth	10 Jul 1860
Franklin, John F.	Howard, Dorzina	6 Oct 1860
Franklin, Laura O.	Henderson, J. G.	7 Dec 1892
Franklin, Melvin	Kegel, Carrie	3 Jul 1895
Franklin, Nancy Ann	Snyder, Augusta	4 Jan 1861
Franklin, Servilda	Robinson, Barton	26 Jul 1854
Franklin, William W.	Huntermaster, Mary Sophia I.	3 Mar 1853
Plymouth County, Iowa		
Franklin, E. A.	Baumgardner, Clara	3 Apr 1889
Scott County, Iowa		
Franklin, Mary	Kruse, Antony	25 Oct 1865

Franklin Marriages in Kansas

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the eleventh in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Allen County, Kansas		
Franklin, N. S.	Rouse, Adda A.	28 Nov 1877
Cherokee County, Kansas		
Franklin, Bert	Peck, Nora	27 Jul 1897
Franklin, Henrietta	Houck, A. W.	8 Aug 1901
Franklin, M. N.	Lane, Cora A.	3 Oct 1883
Coffey County, Kansas		
Franklin, Edward	Oram, May	31 Dec 1881
Franklin, Edward	Oram, May	1 Jan 1882
Franklin, Fanny	Firtin, William	29 Oct 1859
Franklin, Miltie	Richardson, Grace Adell	31 Dec 1897
Crawford County, Kansas		
Franklin, Ida B.	Lynch, P. U.	17 Dec 1884
Douglas County, Kansas		
Franklin, Joseph	, Betsey	16 May 1866
Franklin County, Kansas		
Franklin, Andrew	King, Sarah	15 Mar 1870
Franklin, Daniel	Stanley, Elizabeth	6 Oct 1867
Franklin, M. B.	Parker, A. M.	22 Mar 1870
Johnson County, Kansas		
Franklin, Benjamin J.	Cosgrove, Mary E.	10 Feb 1889
Franklin, Eva	Rhea, Robert K.	8 Aug 1886
Franklin, Jacob	Moore, Nellie	7 Oct 1886
Neosho County, Kansas		
Franklin, Anna Bell	Adams, John	3 Dec 1891
Franklin, Belle	Fergeson, J. D.	18 Mar 1894
Franklin, Clarence E.	Wells, Nora	6 Jul 1901
Franklin, D. W.	Chapman, Laura B.	31 Dec 1899
Franklin, Fred T.	Adamson, Maude M.	20 Dec 1899
Franklin, J. A.	Stephen, Melinda N.	30 Oct 1898
Franklin, Laura	Hogan, Thomas M.	4 Oct 1892
	FFRU Vol 26 - Page 16	

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Noah	Boyed, Laura	8 Feb 1891
Franklin, Susan M.	Ryker, J. C.	14 Feb 1900

Franklin Marriages in Kentucky

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the twelfth in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Boone County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Nelly	Wolford, John	6 Feb 1855
Christian County, Kentucky		
Franklin, William	Miles, M. F.	8 Jan 1861
Clark County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Ben F.	Cambell, Joan	26 Feb 1844
Franklin, Eliza Jane	Cambell, Shelton	22 Dec 1842
Franklin, Mary	Wilson, Henry A.	18 Apr 1841
Franklin, Sally Ann	Holebrock, John	22 Dec 1842
Franklin, Sarah M.	Hart, John	1 Apr 1857
Grant County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Thomas A.	McAtee, Sarah A.	29 Apr 1843
Franklin, Thos. A.	McAtee, Sarah Ann	1 May 1843
Green County, Kentucky		
Franklin, George R.	Jeffreys, Willie E.	9 Apr 1893
Hardin County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Amanda E.	Vick, John W.	11 Jun 1857
Franklin, Benjamin	Higdon, Elizabeth E.	9 Oct 1859
Franklin, Daniel L.	Setzer, Phoebe E.	13 Aug 1855
Franklin, Elizabeth	Reed, Alexander	2 Aug 1853
Franklin, Elizabeth	Reed, Alexander	9 Aug 1853
Franklin, William	Pearson, Eliza A.	9 Jan 1852
Harrison County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Julia A.	Brown, George	5 Aug 1855
Hickman County, Kentucky		

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, George B.	Wilson, Nancy	24 Oct 1854
Franklin, J. L.	Combs, Winnie	24 Feb 1861
Franklin, Mary J.	Gravel, Obadiah	12 Jan 1854
Franklin, W. C.	Armend, Sarah	May 1861
Hopkins County, Kentucky		
Franklin, A. N.	Wooldrige, Mary E.	1 Mar 1855
Franklin, Abraham	Hambleton, Margaret J.	9 Oct 1854
Franklin, Amanda	Hawkins, N. M.	14 Oct 1903
Franklin, Annie O.	Mitchell, W. A.	30 Aug 1903
Franklin, Clearence J.	Sisk, Minnie B.	24 Sep 1903
Franklin, Deadama	Ashmore, Orlander	Sep 1856
Franklin, Elizabeth	McGregor, Alfred M.	3 Oct 1858
Franklin, Ferris	Wilson, Sarah	10 Jul 1859
Franklin, Israel N.	Utley, Elizabeth	23 Jun 1858
Franklin, J. W.	Southard, M. E.	Jun 1856
Franklin, J. W.	Teague, Dollie L.	26 Dec 1893
Franklin, James A.	Southard, Nancy H.	23 Feb 1853
Franklin, Jennie	Milligan, C. B.	16 Nov 1893
Franklin, Jeremiah	Brown, Nancy	15 Mar 1858
Franklin, L. P.	Asbridge, Maude	28 Nov 1903
Franklin, Lewis	Franklin, Rebecca E.	Apr 1856
Franklin, Logan	Jackson, Martha E.	16 Jun 1852
Franklin, Logan A.	Jackson, Martha E.	15 Nov 1852
Franklin, Lucinda	Menser, William W.	8 Dec 1857
Franklin, Marand	McGrigor, James	18 Sep 1853
Franklin, N. M.	Sisk, N. R.	30 Nov 1903
Franklin, Nancy	Jackson, Dinsmore	20 May 1858
Franklin, Nancy	Parker, Richard D.	30 Jun 1855
Franklin, Oina	Todd, O. D.	24 Dec 1903
Franklin, R. W.	Barton, William	25 Oct 1855
Franklin, Rachel E.	Burton, William H.	30 Jan 1855
Franklin, Rebecca	Barton, W.	Nov 1855
Franklin, Rebecca E.	Franklin, Lewis	Apr 1856
Franklin, S.	Ligon, Susan T.	11 Jan 1855
Franklin, Sarah E.	Cunningham, J. C.	23 May 1894

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Stephen E.	Southard, Emely O.	10 Feb 1853
Franklin, W. F.	Calvert, C. E.	31 Dec 1893
Lawrence County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Virginia	Chapman, John	7 Nov 1877
Letcher County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Elizabeth	Hall, Greensway	3 Jan 1853
Franklin, Elizah	Wall, Preston	4 Dec 1856
Franklin, Mary	Grace, Demiah	30 Dec 1859
Madison County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Charley	Moran, Agnes	1 Mar 1877
Marshall County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Margaret	Wright, Jonathan	2 Dec 1858
Franklin, Margret J.	Story, Mearmar B.	12 Aug 1858
Franklin, R. H.	Phelphs, Martha A.	19 May 1859
Franklin, Sylas Y.	Smith, Mary	26 Mar 1857
Franklin, Z.	Wade, Nancy	2 Mar 1856
Mason County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Henry F.	Tabb, Birdie	27 Sep 1864
Franklin, John W.	Kirk, Mary	13 Feb 1819
Franklin, Nathan	Duncan, Margaret B.	27 May 1818
Franklin, Zilas V.	Ridden, Nancy	9 Mar 1864
Metcalfe County, Kentucky		
Franklin, L. A.	Smith, M. A.	14 Oct 1877
Franklin, Nancy J.	Grider, William	Dec 1876
Franklin, Nancy J.	Thompson, J. M.	Apr 1876
Monroe County, Kentucky		
Franklin, Nancy G.	Brown, John W.	4 Jan 1877
Shelby County, Kentucky		
Franklin, John R.	Richardson, Nancy	2 Jun 1831
Franklin, John R.	Richardson, Nancy	2 Jun 1831

Franklin Marriages in Louisiana

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the thirteenth in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Alexandria , Rapides Parish, Loui	siana	
Franklin, Anna	Jones, Harry	26 Dec 1887
Franklin, Margaret	Jones, Edward	25 Mar 1871
Franklin, Virginia	Hadnot, L. W.	18 Jan 1894
Southwest Louisiana Index		
Franklin, Benjamin	Williams, Jeanette	13 May 1871

Franklin Marriages in Maine

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the fourteenth in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Portland, Cumberland County, M	Taine	
Franklin, Eliza Mrs.	Nepean, William	6 Dec 1853
Franklin, Ella J.	Higgins, John A.	6 Jun 1877
Franklin, Nettie	Johnson, Eugene W.	28 Feb 1888
Franklin, Sarah E.	Peterson, John	13 Oct 1839
Franklin, Sarah Elizabeth D.	Peterson, John	29 Dec 1838
Franklin, Thomas	Ten Broeck, Helena Louisa	23 May 1860
Franklin, William H.	McKeel, Eliza	20 Jun 1844
Biddeford, York County, Maine		
Franklin, Elizabeth T.	Hayes, Ira R.	23 May 1886

Franklin Marriages in Maryland

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the fifteenth in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Saint James Parish, Anne Arundel County, Maryland		
Franklin, Artridge	Phipps, Roger	1771
Franklin, Elizabeth	Welsh, Aaron	1778
Franklin, Harriet	Beall, Samuel H.	1 Feb 1825
Franklin, Isabella	Franklin, William	21 Jan 1779
Franklin, John	Hopkins, Mary	10 Apr 1783
Franklin, John	Ward, Elizabeth	30 May 1776
Franklin, Mary	Deale, James	17 Feb 1805
Franklin, Mary	Johns, Richard	11 Jan 1776
Franklin, Rachel	Barker, William	27 Mar 1783
Franklin, Rachel	Waters, Arnold	7 Apr 1773
Franklin, Robert	Norman, Henrietta	12 Feb 1837
Franklin, Sarah	Horn, William	28 Oct 1697
Franklin, William	Franklin, Isabella	21 Jan 1779
Baltimore, Maryland		
Franklin, Abraham	Impey, Eliza	12 Sep 1849
Franklin, Airy	Richardson, Nathaniel	21 Aug 1819
Franklin, Ann	Biddeson, Salem	5 Jul 1815
Franklin, Benjamin	Ludden, Sarah	20 Apr 1822
Franklin, Charlotte A.	Crow, Richard B.	11 Feb 1826
Franklin, Dorcas	Smith, Joseph F.	1 Sep 1819
Franklin, Eliza Jane	Anderson, Charles	20 Feb 1846
Franklin, Elizabeth	Arnolds, Thomas	16 May 1827
Franklin, Elizabeth	Howard, William	19 Dec 1850
Franklin, Elizabeth Ann	Simmonds, Edward	21 Jul 1847
Franklin, Garrett	Gorsuch, Mary	15 Sep 1829
Franklin, George	Essix, Julian	8 Mar 1815
Franklin, George E.	Johnson, Maria C.	7 Jun 1838
Franklin, John	Chalmers, Sarah Ann	6 Oct 1838
Franklin, John	Lux, Rachel R.	26 Sep 1822
Franklin, Joseph	Reynolds, Lotitia	1 Nov 1850
Franklin, Joshua	Holbrook, Sophia	19 Dec 1822

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Joshua D.	Peacock, Mary D.	11 Feb 1850
Franklin, Juliet Ann	Easter, William	1 May 1827
Franklin, Larkin	Walmsley, Sarah	2 Mar 1844
Franklin, Mary	Cook, Peter	4 Apr 1820
Franklin, Mary	Parlett, Zachariah	30 Mar 1820
Franklin, Mary Jane	Eddelman, Gottlieb Hans	18 Jul 1849
Franklin, Rachel	Broadfoot, William	12 Jul 1827
Franklin, Rezin	Porter, Emritta	20 Sep 1822
Franklin, Samuel	Moody, Louisa	12 Dec 1818
Franklin, Samuel	Wright, Rebeca	27 May 1830
Franklin, Susanna S.	Dobbin, Francis M.	22 May 1847
Franklin, Thomas	Cockran, Eliza	19 Oct 1819
Franklin, William	Hardy, Sarah	7 Sep 1846
English Evangelical Lutheran Ch	urch, Baltimore, Baltimore, Marylan	d
Franklin, George W.	O'Neal, Emma	6 Jun 1874
First Methodist Episcopal Church	n, Baltimore, Baltimore, Maryland	
Franklin, Alexander	Norman, Margaret Ann	28 Sep 1835
Franklin, Catherine A.	Covington, Edward	14 Apr 1836
Franklin, Cornelia	Smith, Michael	22 Jul 1864
Franklin, Eliza J.	Anderson, Charles	20 Feb 1846
Franklin, George	Essex, Julian	9 Mar 1815
Franklin, Juliet Ann	Easter, William	1 May 1827
Franklin, Margeret Ann	Fouch, Amos	3 Jun 1849
Franklin, Mary Jane	Eddleman, Gotlieb Henry	18 Jul 1849
Franklin, Tabitha	Waters, Peter	20 Jan 1814
Franklin, Thomas	Cochran, Elizebeth	21 Oct 1819
St. Johns Parish, Baltimore, Mary	yland	
Franklin, Charles	, Rebecca	8 Mar 1860
Franklin, Jarrett	Berry, Martha	10 Feb 1872
Carroll County, Maryland		
Franklin, Althea C.	Gosnell, Amos L.	18 Feb 1885
Franklin, Ambrose P. G.	Franklin, Mary Ann	18 Apr 1864
Franklin, Ambrose Peregrine	Luscaleete, Elizabeth Ann	28 Feb 1854
Franklin, Ann C.	Kitzmiller, Hiram	16 Dec 1851

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Annie M.	Appleby, Atwood	27 Jul 1895
Franklin, Belinda Peirce	Bloom, David	6 Dec 1853
Franklin, Benjamin H.	Albert, Sarah A. M.	29 Dec 1866
Franklin, Carrie E.	Fogle, Harry O.	17 Feb 1893
Franklin, Charles Meply	Grimes, Latitia	27 Apr 1861
Franklin, Charles S.	Shipley, Sarah E.	18 Dec 1878
Franklin, Charles W.	Kitzmiller, Mary Cathrine	25 Mar 1847
Franklin, David	Johnson, Maria Ann	28 Nov 1867
Franklin, David W.	Nusbaum, Mary E.	24 Feb 1879
Franklin, Edith A.	Sellman, Walter T.	24 Feb 1879
Franklin, Elhanan H.	Skidmore, Mary E.	3 Mar 1875
Franklin, Eliza Jane	Kiler, Daniel	17 Apr 1865
Franklin, Elsie Belle	Jenkins, Edgar S.	14 Aug 1891
Franklin, Emma	Steiner, John P.	4 May 1885
Franklin, Emma V.	Conaway, John W.	30 Jan 1888
Franklin, Fannie E.	Lovell, John R.	11 Jun 1898
Franklin, Florence B.	Thompkins, Michael	17 Aug 1881
Franklin, Francis	Williams, Margaret	11 Jun 1840
Franklin, George E.	Segafoose, Elizabeth	11 May 1869
Franklin, George W.	Albert, Minerva Elvira	11 Jan 1864
Franklin, Harvey W.	Grosnickle, Edna	30 Jun 1899
Franklin, Henry D.	Barnes, Clementina Louisa	7 Apr 1847
Franklin, Isabilla	Neal, Solomon	19 Oct 1869
Franklin, J. Albert	Cook, India	4 Apr 1884
Franklin, James J.	Farvour, Katie E.	6 Dec 1880
Franklin, James Steven	Bair, Leah	29 Dec 1862
Franklin, Jesse L.	Haines, Maggie J.	25 Sep 1886
Franklin, Jesse L.	Munay, Adie	23 Dec 1873
Franklin, Jesse W.	Lindsay, Luth	16 May 1843
Franklin, John T.	Nusbaum, Margaret	13 Mar 1855
Franklin, Josephine	Haines, George W.	28 Jan 1890
Franklin, Joshua	Gosnell, Jennette	30 Aug 1852
Franklin, Katie V.	Farver, Robert T.	17 Dec 1886
Franklin, Leaher D.	Young, William Thomas	5 Jan 1892
Franklin, Lewis C.	Barnes, Ann Amelia	10 Dec 1874

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Franklin, Lewis C.	Shipley, Rachael	11 Feb 1886
Franklin, Lillian G.	Hawn, Edward	21 Nov 1892
Franklin, Lillie Irene	Stem, Harry A.	6 Apr 1899
Franklin, Lottie A.	Hellen, George Edward	15 Mar 1890
Franklin, Luther	Grimes, Amelia	8 Jan 1889
Franklin, Margarett	Shue, John A.	8 Apr 1840
Franklin, Martha E.	Williams, Abraham L.	19 May 1866
Franklin, Mary A.	Behol, Charles	17 Jul 1888
Franklin, Mary A. E.	Daub, John	18 May 1870
Franklin, Mary Ann	Franklin, Ambrose P. G.	18 Apr 1864
Franklin, Mary Ann	Butler, Derius	10 Apr 1850
Franklin, Mary E.	Weller, William H.	20 May 1847
Franklin, Mary E.	Rigler, Samuel	1 Nov 1890
Franklin, Nancy J.	Lindsey, Lewis	25 Nov 1847
Franklin, Nathan C.	Barnes, Alevia	2 Mar 1886
Franklin, Nathan E.	Roop, Sarah E.	31 Mar 1884
Franklin, Nathan E.	Royer, Ida M.	30 Aug 1879
Franklin, Nathan G.	Shue, Sarah Ann	7 Jan 1861
Franklin, Nathan H.	Edwards, Eurith A.	25 Mar 1885
Franklin, Nathan H.	Grimes, Martha E.	6 Nov 1865
Franklin, Phebe	Ensor, Charles	4 Sep 1839
Franklin, Rezin H.	Barnes, Ann M.	16 Feb 1857
Franklin, Rezin H.	Pickett, Annei D.	10 Jun 1871
Franklin, Robert E. L.	Pickett, Isabella L.	9 Mar 1885
Franklin, Rose Ann	Greenwood, David H.	4 Jan 1858
Franklin, Rosie Ellen	Byers, Thomas Jefferson	18 Aug 1888
Franklin, Sarah M.	Young, Joshua D.	2 Nov 1889
Franklin, Susan A.	Evans, Joseph	21 Mar 1855
Franklin, Thomas B.	Condon, Cordelia	16 Feb 1842
Franklin, Thomas N.	Young, Rosie E.	24 Dec 1894
Franklin, Vila Ann	Leister, Jacob H.	1 Aug 1877
Franklin, W. G.	Batson, Anna L.	2 May 1882
Franklin, William H.	Winchester, Sarah Jane	18 Dec 1884
Franklin, William Henry	Kyler, Mary Elizabeth	15 Aug 1853
Franklin, William J.	Kiler, Heilda L.	3 Jan 1895

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date		
Frederick County, Maryland				
Franklin, Amy	Condon, Richard	6 Jan 1787		
Harford County, Maryland				
Franklin, Alice	Cowens, Joseph	29 Dec 1875		
Franklin, Rosetta	Cohen, James Wesley	8 May 1876		
St. Johns Parish Protestant Episcopal, Joppa, Harford County, Maryland				
Franklin, John	Lux, Rachel	26 Sep 1822		
Saint Marys County, Maryland				
Franklin, Thomas J.	Harris, Josephine	6 Nov 1845		
Saint Pauls Methodist Episcopal, Hagerstown, Washington County, Maryland				
Franklin, Charles	Lutz, Jennie L.	15 Oct 1898		

Franklin Marriages in Massachusetts

Franklin Marriages from the LDS U.S. Vital Records CDs. This article is the sixteenth in this series.

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date		
Williamstown, Berkshire County, Massachusetts				
Franklin, Phillip	Calkens, Chloe M.	27 Feb 1884		
Salem, Essex County, Massachusetts				
Franklin, Elizabeth	Matthews, William	7 Jun 1749		
Franklin, Johnson	Russell, Elizabeth	24 May 1727		
Montague, Franklin County, Massachusetts				
Franklin, Elvira S.	Noys, Joseph D.	5 Jan 1848		
Franklin, Eunis	Gales, Ephram A.	2 Jan 1837		
Franklin, Jabez	Fulton, Sally	8 Apr 1822		
Franklin, Julia A.	Wood, Israel H.	5 Aug 1847		
Franklin, Mary Ann	Barber, Roswell	8 Nov 1849		
Franklin, Sophronia	Fulton, Jesse	2 Jun 1825		
Northampton, Hampshire County, Massachusetts				
Franklin, Louisa M.	Whitehouse, Robert M.	28 Mar 1863		
Franklin, Mary	Ferland, Jeremiah D.	3 Apr 1869		
	TTDYYY 100 D			

FFRU Vol 26 - Page 25

Name	Spouse	Marriage Date
Kalamazoo County, Michigan		
Franklin, Cora L.	Miller, Charles M.	26 Apr 1874
Franklin, Marshall D.	Glidden, Viola F.	5 Sep 1877

Book Review: The Family and Ancestry of Sims Kelly Franklin and Margaret Virginia Chapman

This is the first in series of book reviews.

Call Number: US/CAN BOOK AREA 929.273 F854b

Author: Franklin, Jesse Edward.

Title: The family and ancestry of Sims Kelly Franklin and Margaret Virginia Chapman Franklin / by Jesse Edward Franklin.

Publication Information: Wolfe City, Tex.: Henington Publishing, c1973.

Format: 196 pages.

Contents: Thomas Franklin (about. 1760-1808) of Chester County, South Carolina, married Jemima Morris (born about 1765) about 1785 and they settled in Richland County, North Carolina. After Thomas' death, Jemima married Phillip Magee and moved to St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana. Includes index.

Includes Chapman, Cryer, Foster, Wells, Johnes, Meeker and related families.

Additional Formats: Also on microfilm. US/CAN FILM AREA 1036334 item 6

Earliest Franklin Progenitor: Thomas B. Franklin and Jemima Morris.

My Observations: This book starts with a 2 page article about one of the Franklin coat of arms, and about the same amount of material on the history of the surname. There is an article of about 5 pages on research about Thomas B. Franklin's life and records which pertain to him, including some images of the original records. This appears to be well researched and documented. This work does not include very much information on collaterals. It includes several Franklin photographs. There are about 30 pages devoted to Franklins.

Book Review: The Crenshaws of Kentucky, 1800-1995

Call Number: US/CAN BOOK AREA 929.273 C863p

Author: Peden, Henry C. (Henry Clint), 1946-.

Title: The Crenshaws of Kentucky, 1800-1995: a genealogy of the Crenshaws in south-central Kentucky, primarily the counties of Barren and Metcalfe, including the related families of Allen, Arnett, Beard, Bird, Bradshaw, Dearing, Dickey, Duke, Franklin, Goad, Hord, Jackson, Love, Maupin, Mitchell, Munday, Pace, Parrish ... / by Henry C. Peden, Jr..

Publication Information: Westminster, Md: Family Line Publications, 1995.

Format: 202 p.

Contents: Descendants of John Crenshaw (1759-1818), who was born in Virginia (either Louisa or Albemarle County), a son of Nicholas Crenshaw and Mary Carr. He was married to Mildred Thompson (died 1834), the daughter of William and Elizabeth Thompson of Albemarle County, Virginia. John Crenshaw migrated to Kentucky by 1805 and settled at Knob Lick which is now in Metcalfe County. He and his wife had nine children. Descendants of Benjamin Crenshaw (c. 1745-1828) and his wife, Tabitha, who were in Barren County by 1801. Includes African-American and other Crenshaws in south central Kentucky.

Includes Duke, Franklin, Parrish, Peden and allied families. Includes index.

Earliest Franklin Progenitor: Two lines of Franklins from south-central Kentucky: William Franklin (15 Nov 1813 - 12 Sep 1841) of Barren County, wife Nancy Crenshaw and Roger Thompson Franklin (27 May 1809 - 15 Mar 1886) of Metcalfe County, Kentucky, wife Milly T. Slemmons

My Observations: Although the book deals mainly with the Crenshaws, there are approximately 12 pages about Franklins, primarily in Barren County, Kentucky. Source material is liberally quoted throughout, including census, Wills, *Barren County Heritage* by C. Goode. No photos. Uses a Henry numbering scheme that is easy to follow. Printed with a courier font with names in all upper case, which reduces legibility, however, all in all, the book is of high quality.

Book Review: The Cleveland Line

Call Number: US/CAN BOOK AREA 929.273 A1 no. 1598

Author: Welch, June Rayfield.

Title: The Cleveland line: notes from Roger Cleveland, of Virginia, through John Cleveland, of North Caroline, to John Cleveland Hooper, of Alabama and the Indian Territory / June Rayfield Welch.

Publication Information: Dallas, Texas: J. R. Welch, 1988.

Format: 19 leaves.; 28 cm.

Contents: A genealogy of the Cleveland families who are descendants of Roger Cleveland. He arrived in Virginia before 16 Nov 1670.

Includes Franklin, Graves, Coffey, Welborn, Hooper, and related families.

Earliest Franklin Progenitor: Bernard Franklin and his wife Mary Cleveland

My Observations: Source documents quoted throughout. Includes some material on the theory that Bernard Franklin is the son of Lawrence Franklyn, Sr. These are some of the Franklin lines of Albemarle County, Virginia and Surry County, North Carolina. This includes the Jesse Franklin who became Governor of North Carolina. The entire work is only 19 pages, and only about 3 deal with the Franklins.

Henry H. Franklin (born 8 Jul 1832)

A Short Genealogical History by Roberta Jo Hawk, MD, 4812 Rimrock Rd., Billings, MT 59106, Last revised April 16, 1996. Editor: An extensive article on Roberta's genealogy is found in Volume 25.

Henry H. Franklin, my great, great-grandfather, was born on 8 July $1832_{[1]}$ to James Smyth $_{[2]}$ and Mildred $_{[3]}$ "Milla/Milly" (Quick) Franklin $_{[4]}$. This was the second marriage for James Smyth Franklin ($1787_{[5]}$ - $1863_{[6]}$). James' first wife, Sarah Rush $_{[7]}$ ($1791_{[8]}$ - $1812_{[9]}$), having borne Henry's older two half-brothers, [Wesley $_{[10]}$ ($1808_{[11]}$ - $1853_{[12]}$) and John $_{[13]}$ ($1810_{[14]}$ - $1850_{[15]}$)] died on 10 November $1812_{[16]}$ at the age of twenty-one. James Smyth Franklin then married Milla Quick $_{[17]}$ ($1792_{[18]}$ - $1861_{[19]}$) on 20 June $1814_{[20]}$ in Ross County, Ohio. $_{[21]}$ They had thirteen children: $_{[22]}$

		Born:
1.	Charles W. Franklin	21 Mar 1815
2.	Sarah C. Franklin	16 Oct 1816
3.	Nancy A. Franklin	7 Mar 1818
4.	Matthias G. Franklin	15 Dec 1819
5.	Rebeka [sic] Franklin	12 Feb 1821
6.	Andrew R. Franklin	5 Jan 1823
7.	Curthbert [sic] V. Franklin	9 Apr 1825
8.	Dorcus Q. Franklin	11 Feb 1827
9.	Oleyvet [sic] Franklin	1 Jan 1829
10.	Rhoda J. Franklin	15 May 1830
11.	Henry H. Franklin	8 Jul 1832
12.	Melinda [sic] J. Franklin	26 May 1838
13.	Emerath V. Franklin	10 May 1840

It appears that the James Smyth Franklin family lived in Ross County, Ohio for several years. Both of the marriages of James Smyth Franklin, [23] as well as the births of his first nine children (including Wesley_[24] and John, [25] listed above) probably occurred there. [I have not personally researched all of these birth places.] It appears that Charles W. (eldest son of Milla Quick and James S. Franklin born in 1815_[26]) and Cuthbert (their seventh child born in 1825_[27]) were born in Ohio. [28] Rhoda Jane (born in 1830_[29]) and her younger siblings, including Henry H., were born in Indiana in the Tippecanoe County area. [30] I do not have any source documentation on the birth-place of the two children (Dorcus Quick, born in 1827_[31] and Oleyvet S. born in 1829_[32]) born between Cuthbert and Rhoda Jane. However, if the dates of land ownership noted below are correct, the Franklin family was in Indiana by 1825, and these two children were probably born there as well.

Henry's father, James Smyth Franklin, and his grandfather, Joseph Franklin (1768-1833) both purchased land in the Tippecanoe area in Indiana in 1825. James purchased eighty acres of land (E ½ NE 1/4 of Sec 17, T22N R4W) in Wabash Co, Indiana on 14 Nov 1825. Jal Old Wabash County included the present Tippecanoe County. The next year, Tippecanoe County, Indiana was formed. Jal In fact, Henry's aunt Rebecca Franklin and uncle William Trenary, became the first couple ever to be married in this new county on 2 Nov 1826. It appears, then, that much of the extended Franklin family moved together to the Tippecanoe area about 1825.

Henry H. Franklin and/or his father, James Smyth Franklin, are listed in the Tippecanoe County, Indiana censuses from 1830-1880.[38] Henry's grandfather, Joseph Franklin, Henry's uncle, Preston Franklin, and Henry's half-brother, John, are listed in this county as heads-of-household in the 1830 census.[39] Henry's grandfather, Joseph Franklin, died in Tippecanoe County in 1834 and his will (written in 1833) was probated there.[40] On 12 Mar 1835, Henry's father, James Franklin, purchased 160 acres of land (NW 1/4 Sec 26, Twp 74, R 3 W) in Tippecanoe County from a John and Nancy Shaw.[41] This points to the fact that the James Franklin family was stable in the Tippecanoe County area before, during, and soon after Henry's birth in 1832.

In October 1855, divorce proceedings against Henry's oldest full brother, Charles W. Franklin, were brought by Charles' wife, Elizabeth. This case was very unusual, as the grounds for divorce were that he had "committed incest with his own daughter, Emily Jane Moore". [42] (The child would have been about nineteen years old in 1855,[43] which leaves one to ponder the last name "Moore". It is possible that Emily was married by this point. A marriage of an Emily Jane Franklin and an Elijah Moore is listed on page 165 of the Tippecanoe County Marriage Record Book 5,[44] but I do not have a copy of this record nor the date of entry.) Henry H. Franklin signed onto this Tippecanoe County document, verifying the place of residency of the defendant and his wife. This fancy, quite legible calligraphy-style signature indicates that Henry could write very well. He apparently could read also.[45]

On 18 Jun 1857_[46] Henry H. Franklin married Mary Elizabeth Shigley_[47] (about 1833_[48] - 1893_[49]) in Tippecanoe County, Indiana._[50] They started a family immediately after marriage, as Edwin S._[51] was born ten months later in April, 1858._[52] Brother Everette E._[53] was born in May 1860._[54]

The 1860 census_[55] finds Henry's family living next door to his wife's brother James Shigley,_[56] a widower, and his two children. James Shigley's late wife was Rhoda Jane (Franklin) Shigley,_[57] Henry H. Franklin's sister._[58] Therefore, a brother and a sister Franklin married a sister and a brother Shigley and then lived side-by-side. Next door to Henry's brother-in-law, James Shigley is an Elizabeth J. Shigley, listed as a widow. (Col. James Newton Shigley, my third cousin-onceremoved and friend and Henry's great-grandnephew is author of the book, *As I Recall*. In it he clarifies the connection of this Elizabeth to the other Shigleys. Documents show that Elizabeth Jane STAIR and James Shigley married on 2 February 1858 in Tippecanoe County, Indiana._[59] Each had two children from a previous marriage._[60] Only three months into the marriage, Elizabeth evidently abandoned James and his family. He petitioned for divorce in October of 1858._[61] Col. Shigley states that this is the same James and Elizabeth as were living close to Henry H. in 1860._[62] Col. James and I like to say that we are therefore, in the vernacular, "double cousins", sharing as we do, two sets of great-grandparents.)

[Point of interest: This is not the full extent of the "Shigley-Franklin connection". Henry's aunt, Olivet Franklin, [63] married his wife's uncle, George Sheagley/Schuckley/ Shigley[64] in 1811[65] in Ross County, Ohio.[66]

Ulysses Henry Franklin, [67] Henry's third child, joined the family, still in Tippecanoe County, in December of 1864. [68] The 1870 census does not list any more children. This is the first census to list Henry's occupation as "farmer". [69] (The 1860 census taker mistakenly wrote Henry's last name, "Franklin", in the place marked for occupation!) A copy of a single page (p. 128) of an undated "Business Directories [sic]" with accompanying map (obtained from the Tippecanoe County Area Genealogical Association) shows that Henry owned land in section 26 and 35 (adjoining sections) in Washington Township, Tippecanoe County, totaling 84 acres. His business is listed as farmer. [70] This tract of land is adjacent to an even larger piece of land owned by Joseph and Mary Shigley (Henry's father and mother-in-law). Surely this amount of land ownership indicates a certain degree of wealth by both families.

Henry H. Franklin's assets slowly increased. In 1850, he was still in his father's household._[71] In 1860, there is no mention of real estate, but his personal property was worth \$700_{.[72]} By 1870, Henry's real estate was worth \$2300 and he had personal property worth \$800_{.[73]}

Sadly, Henry's first marriage was short-lived, as Mary Elizabeth died in Washington Twp, Tippe-canoe County on 23 June 1871 at the young age of 36 years. She is buried in Buck Creek Cemetery where her tombstone lists her maiden name, age, date of death, and the fact that she was the "wife of H.H.". [75]

Henry was not a widower for long, marrying Sarah (Carnes_[76]) Shigley,_[77] widow of Jacob Shigley_[78] on 11 March 1872._[79] Jacob Shigley was a brother of Henry's first wife, Mary Elizabeth Shigley._[80] Henry therefore married his sister-in-law. (Another Franklin/Shigley connection!!) She brought two young children to this union._[81] Only ?Lizzie?/?Luigi? Shigley was listed on the 1880 census as a nine-year-old stepdaughter._[82] Also listed in 1880 were two new daughters, Edith, age five, and Lena, age three._[83] Henry was still listed as a farmer._[84]

Henry and Sarah may have had a daughter named Elizabeth in about 1880.[85] The 1900 census reveals that Sarah is the mother of six children, four of them living.[86] (I am only aware of five possibilities, including Elizabeth as noted above. Elizabeth is not listed on the 1900 census. She may represent one of the children not living at that time. Perhaps the other deceased child was the unnamed second stepchild Sarah brought with her when she married Henry. This child would have died prior to the 1880 census, as she was not listed there.)

By 1885, the family moved to Nebraska. Clara Lucille Franklin (Henry and Sarah's third child) was born there in July of 1885_[87] or 1886._[88] The turn-of-the-century finds the Henry Franklin family in Liberty Precinct, Grant Village, Perkins County, Nebraska. Edith B. is still living at home, even though she is twenty-four years old._[89]

I have been unable to find Henry or his sons in the 1910 census, although his three sons are still in Nebraska according to the 1920 census._[90] A newspaper article dated Tuesday, October 22, 1912 from an unknown newspaper was found tucked in the Ewing family Bible_[91] (Harry Walter Ewing married Henry H. Franklin's granddaughter, Irma Franklin.)_[92] The article is entitled "The Sunset Social. All Hamilton County Old Folks, Regardless of Church Connections Invited to Par-

ticipate."_[93] This describes the Sunset social given in the Methodist church. A list of "guests seventy years of age or older" was published. This included "Henry H. Franklin, age 80".

Loren Elliott, Henry's great-grandnephew, reports in his unpublished history that Henry died on 19 June 1913 in Hamilton County, Indiana. [94] I imagine that this is an error as Henry's three sons were in Nebraska this whole time. I suspect that the above mentioned newspaper article was from Hamilton County, Nebraska, as the vocal soloist is listed as Miss Pearle Munson, step-sister of Henry's granddaughter Irma May Franklin. [95] Irma was married in Aurora, Hamilton County, Nebraska in 1911. [96] Pearle Munson also sang at this wedding. [97] In the newspaper account of this wedding, [98] Henry H. Franklin is not listed among the list of "out of town guests". In fact, he is not mentioned at all. However, this could be just an oversight as if he were not from "out of town" or a parent, there is no obvious place to list him. It is also possible that he was too ill to attend the wedding. Henry's granddaughter, Irma, and her husband still lived in Nebraska in 1913. [99]

In conclusion, it appears that Henry H. Franklin was a literate, successful farmer, although I know nothing about his formal education, hobbies, or passions. His two marriages were productive and apparently happy. He lived to an age that is still considered above average for American men today. As noted in the addendum, I hope that future research sheds more light on some of the many remaining mysteries concerning Henry H. Franklin and his family.

From the preceding history, it is obvious that a great deal of work remains to be done on this family, and specifically on Henry H. Franklin.

Notes

- [1] Franklin family Bible Record (unknown publisher, 1844), originally owned by James Smyth and Mildred "Milly/Milla" (Quick) Franklin, now in possession of Ann MAL-LETT, of Indianapolis, IN. [Copies of these family Bible record sheets obtained from Loren Elliott of Mesa, Arizona. He notes that Malinda Franklin, youngest sister of Henry Franklin was probably responsible for the last half of the well-kept family records found inserted in the leather backed 1844 family Bible that may have been her mother's Bible. He believes that the earliest penmanship on these records was that of Henry's mother, Mildred "Milla/Milly" (Quick) Franklin.] (This record is hereafter referred to as Franklin Bible.) 1890 U.S. Census (population), Nebraska, Perkins County, Liberty Precinct, Grant Village, E.D. 141, p.1, National Archives Microfilm Publication T623, roll 936.
- [2] Ibid
- [3] Loren S. Elliott, Appendix A, "Descendants of Joseph and Elizabeth Franklin," March 1993, 4. [Loren Elliott of Mesa, Arizona is a distant cousin of mine and a great-grand-nephew of Henry H. Franklin who has compiled an extensive, unpublished Franklin genealogy covering the lives and descendants of Joseph and Elizabeth Franklin, Henry's grandparents. He was kind enough to send me copies of the pages referring to my ancestors.] (Hereafter referred to as Elliott.)
- [4] Franklin Bible.
- [5] Ibid
- [6] Ibid
- [7] Ibid
- [8] Ibid

- [9] Ibid
- [10] Ibid
- [11] Ibid
- [12] Ibid
- [13] Ibid
- [14] Ibid
- [15] Ibid
- [16] Ibid
- [17] Ibid
- [18] Ibid
- [19] Ibid
- [20] Ibid
- [21] Elliott, 4.
- [22] Franklin Bible.
- [23] Ibid
- [24] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Carroll County, Ninth District, p. 255, no. 80, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 137. Elliott, 4.
- [25] Elliott, 4.
- [26] Franklin Bible. 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Carroll County, Ninth District, p. 276, no. 374, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 137.
- [27] Franklin Bible. 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 139, no. 140, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 175.
- [28] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 139, no. 140, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 175. 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Carroll County, Ninth District, p. 276, no. 374, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 137. 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Howard County, Irwin Twp, p. 446, line 1, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 151. Elliott, 6-8.
- [29] Franklin Bible.
- [30] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 139, no. 140, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 175. Elliott, 8.
- [31] Franklin Bible Record.
- [32] *Ibid*.
- [33] Compilation of listings from the First Tract Book, Tippecanoe County, Indiana, p. 28. ((I have not personally seen this information source. I received this single sheet of paper from the Tippecanoe County Area Genealogical Association (TIPCOA). It is typed and in alphabetical order. This appears to be an Index, of sorts, but with acreage, date of acquisition, township, exact location and section numbers.))
- [34] First Tract Book, Tippecanoe County, Indiana, 28.
- [35] Elliott, 3.
- [36] *The Handy Book for Genealogists*, 8th ed. (Logan, Utah: Everton Publishers, Inc., 1991), 77.
- [37] Marriage License for Rebecca Franklin and William TRENARY, Marriage Record Book 1, p. 1, Tippecanoe County Clerk of Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana.
- [38] 1830 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Fairfield Twp., p. 86,

National Archives Microfilm Publication M19, roll 31. 1840 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 78, no. 10, National Archives Microfilm Publication M704, roll 95. 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 139, no. 140, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 175. 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 465, no. 434, National Archives Microfilm Publication M653, roll 300. 1870 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 380, no. 10, National Archives Microfilm Publication M593, roll 362. 1880 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., E.D. 19, p. 155B, National Archives Microfilm Publication T9, roll 313.

- [39] 1830 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 78-9, lines 14-17, National Archives Microfilm Publication M19, roll 31.
- [40] Will of Joseph Franklin, Will Record I, p. 30, Clerk of Circuit Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana. (Hereafter referred to as Will, Joseph Franklin.)
- [41] Elliott, 3. (I have not personally evaluated these land records. This is something that I plan to do.)
- [42] Complaint for Divorce of Elizabeth Franklin to Charles Franklin, Box 107, Clerk of Circuit Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana.
- [43] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Carroll County, Ninth District, p. 276, no. 374, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 137.
- [44] Undated typewritten sheet received from TIPCOA stating the information is from *The Indiana Source Book*, by Willard Heise.
- [45] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 139, no. 140, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 175. 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 465, no. 434, National Archives Microfilm Publication M653, roll 300. 1880 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., E.D. 19, p. 155B, National Archives Microfilm Publication T9, roll 313.
- [46] Franklin Bible. Marriage license and certificate of Henry H. Franklin and Mary E. Shigley, Marriage Record Book 7, p. 292, Clerk of Circuit Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana. (Hereafter referred to as Marriage Record, Henry Franklin/Mary Shigley.)
- [47] Ibid.
- [48] Col. James Newton Shigley to author, 11 September 1993. Original in possession of the writer. 1850 U.S. Census (population), Ohio, Greene County, p. 377, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 683. Elliott, 8.
- [49] *Index to Tippecanoe County Tombstone Readings*, undated single xeroxed sheet received from Tippecanoe County Area Genealogical Association (TIPCOA) to writer around 1992.
- [50] Marriage Record Henry Franklin/Mary Shigley.
- [51] 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 465, no. 434, National Archives Microfilm Publication M653, roll 300. Death Certificate of Edwin S. Franklin, file no. Q 8088, Nebraska Department of Health, Division of Vital Statistics, Lincoln, Nebraska. (Hereafter referred to as Death Certificate, Edwin Franklin.)
- [52] Death Certificate, Edwin Franklin. 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 465, no. 434, National Archives Microfilm Publica-

- tion M653, Roll 300. 1900 U.S. Census (population), Nebraska, York County, York Twp., E.D. 185, Sheet 17, p. 464, line 48, no. 44, National Microfilm Publication T623, roll 942.
- [53] 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 465, no. 434, National Archives Microfilm Publication M653, roll 300.
- [54] 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p.
 465, no. 434, National Archives Microfilm Publication M653, roll 300. 1900 U.S.
 Census (population), Nebraska, York County, York Twp., E.D. 185, Sheet 17, p. 465,
 line 51, no. 44, National Microfilm Publication T623, roll 942.
- [55] 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 461, no. 434-436, National Archives Microfilm Publication M623, roll 300.
- [56] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Ohio, Greene County, Ross Twp., p. 377, no. 372, National Microfilm Publication M432, roll 683.
- [57] Marriage license, certificate, and return for James Shigley and Rhoda Jane Franklin, Tippecanoe Circuit Court, Marriage Record Book 4, p. 419. Franklin Bible.
- [58] Franklin Bible.
- [59] Marriage license, certificate and return for James Shigley and Elizabeth Jane STAIR, Marriage Record Book 7, p. 501, Tippecanoe Circuit Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana.
- [60] Petition for Divorce, James Shigley against Elizabeth J. Shigley, Tippecanoe Circuit Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana. (Xeroxed copy of original record received from the Tippecanoe County Area Genealogical Society; no docket or file number is listed.)
- [61] *Ibid*.
- [62] James Newton Shigley, As I Recall (United States: Wordsworth, 1993), 13.
- [63] Elliott, 4. Shigley, 9. Will, Joseph Franklin.
- [64] Elliott, 4. Shigley, 9. Will, Joseph Franklin. 1850 U. S. Census (population), Ohio, Greene County, Ross Twp., p. 376, no. 357, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 683. Wesley Luther Jacob Mullenneix, *Plymouth Rock to the Pacific*, 325. (Xeroxed copy of this page and the title page kindly supplied by the Tippecanoe County Area Genealogical Association. There is no listing of place or date of publication. No publisher is listed. This book is not in the East Baton Rouge Parish Library system.)
- [65] Elliott, 4. Shigley, 9. Mullenneix, 325.
- [66] Will, Joseph Franklin. Shigley, 9. Mullenneix, 325. 1850 U.S. Census (population), Ohio, Greene County, Ross Twp, p. 376, no. 357, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 683.
- [67] 1870 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe Twp., Washington Twp., p. 380 no. 10, National Archives Microfilm Publication M593, roll 362.
- [68] Elliott, 87. 1900 U.S. Census (population), Nebraska, Seward County, Seward, E.D. 155, p. 634, no. 90, National Archives Microfilm Publication T623, roll 940.
- [69] 1870 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 380, no. 10, National Archives Microfilm Publication M593, roll 362.
- [70] "Business Directories. Washington Twp. Tippecanoe County", p. 128. (Xeroxed page obtained from the "Franklin family files" at TIPCOA. There is no listing of original source or date, but is sometime after 1868, the latest date of settlement seen on this page.)

- [71] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 139, no. 140, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 175.
- [72] 1860 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 465, no. 434, National Archives Microfilm Pulication M653, roll 300.
- [73] 1870 U.S. Census (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., p. 380, no. 10, National Archives Microfilm Publication M593, roll 362.
- [74] "Index to Tippecanoe County Tombstone Readings". Elliot, 8.
- [75] Index to Tippecanoe County Tombstone Readings".
- [76] Marriage license and return for Jacob Shigley and Sarah Carnes, *Marriage Record Book 16*, no. 313, Tippecanoe County Circuit Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana. (Hereafter referred to as Marriage Record, Jacob Shigley/Sarah Carnes.) Death certificate for Clara Lucile Franklin, file no. 2698, Colorado State Board of Health, Denver Colorado. (Hereafter referred to as Death Certificate, Clara Franklin.)
- [77] Marriage license and certificate for Henry H. Franklin and Sarah R. Shigley, *Marriage Record Book 14*, p. 27, Tippecanoe Circuit Court, Tippecanoe County, Indiana. (Hereafter referred to as Marriage Record, Henry Franklin/Sarah Shigley.)
- [78] Marriage Record, Jacob Shigley/Sarah Carnes.
- [79] Marriage Record, Henry Franklin/Sarah Shigley.
- [80] 1850 U.S. Census (population), Ohio, Greene County, Ross Twp., p. 377, no. 372, National Archives Microfilm Publication M432, roll 683.
- [81] Shigley, As I Recall, 12-13.
- [82] 1880 U.S. Census, (population), Indiana, Tippecanoe County, Washington Twp., E.D. 19, p. 155B, no. 208, National Archives Microfilm T9, roll 313.
- [83] *Ibid*.
- [84] *Ibid*.
- [85] Elliott, 8. (This is the only mention I have of this individual. There is some confusion if one assumes that the step-daughter listed on the 1880 census is "Lizzie", age 9, then why would Sarah name another child "Elizabeth. More study is needed to clarify this point.)
- [86] *Ibid*.
- [87] Death certificate, Clara Franklin.
- [88] 1900 U.S. Population (census), Nebraska, Perkins County, Grant Village, Liberty Precinct, E.D. 141, sheet 1, p. 568, no. 25, National Archives Microfilm T623, roll 936.
- [89] *Ibid*.
- [90] 1920 U.S. Census (population), Nebraska, Seward County, Seward, E.D. 189, sheet 14A, nos. 553-564, National Archives Microfilm Publication T625, roll 1002. 1920 U.S. Census (population), Nebraska, Hamilton County, Aurora, E.D. 83, sheet 1-A, no. 1031, National Archives Microfilm Publication T625, roll 990. 1920 U.S. Census (population), Nebraska, Lancaster County, Lincoln, E.D. 59, sheet 12B, no. 639, National Archives Microfilm Publication T625, roll 996.
- [91] Ewing Family Bible Record. *The Holy Bible, Containing the Authorized Edition of the New Testament A.D. 1611, and the Revised Version of A.D. 1881, Arranged in Parallel Columns,* (Philadelphia, PA: A.J. Holman and County, 1886). This Bible, given by John Polk Ewing to his wife Alice V. (Wells) Ewing, is currently in my possession. (Hereafter referred to as Ewing Bible.)
- [92] Marriage Record for Harry Walter Ewing and Irma May Franklin, file no.??, Ohio

- State Bureau of Vital Statistics, Columbus, Ohio. (Hereafter referred to as Marriage Record, Harry Ewing/Irma Franklin.) "Ewing-Franklin", *Aurora Republican*, 23 June 1911, p. 1. (Hereafter referred to as *Aurora Republican*.)
- [93] Unknown newspaper (No location given.) Tuesday, 22 October 1912, no page number given. Xeroxed copy sent to author by Mrs. Naomi Adair Hendrickson (a great-grand-neice of Henry H. Franklin) of Annandale, Virginia in 1993.
- [94] Elliott, 8.
- [95] Personal communication, Martha May (Ewing) Brininstool (my mother).
- [96] Marriage Record, Harry Ewing/Irma Franklin. Aurora Republican.
- [97] Ewing Bible.
- [98] Aurora Republican.
- [99] Personal communication, Martha May (Ewing) Brininstool.

Using the LDS IGI and the Ancestral File in Your Research

Often the LDS International Genealogical Index (IGI) and the Ancestral File (AF) are quoted as "sources". At best, these are secondary sources. At worst, they are wild guesses. Unfortunately, some submitters to the IGI and AF have a "shotgun" approach to genealogy which means that when they aren't sure, instead of not submitting anything, they will submit all possible permutations and hope that one is right. This may suit their purposes, but it is not useful in genealogy, and those who try to use the results of this method, will find it confusing and misleading.

Ancestral File

The Ancestral File (AF) is a database of genealogical that have been submitted to the Family History Department of the LDS Church. Ancestral File currently contains 35 million names, arranged in pedigrees and in family groups.

If you find an interesting line, you can create a GEDCom file to download onto a floppy. (You can't do this on-line, you'll have to visit your local FHC to do this). The file can then be read into your database on your home computer. Obviously, the further back your lines go, the more likely this is to have connections to your kinfolk...

The Ancestral File only accepts new information in GEDCom format. Before this information is distributed, all notes and source references are deleted. The name and address of the submitter is available, however. This is intended to facilitate the collaboration of the various researchers. Again, there is a downside in that many of the addresses are old and are no longer valid.

International Genealogical Index

The International Genealogical Index (IGI) is the single largest genealogical database of names in the world. It consists of names submitted, for any time period, since the Family History Department of the LDS Church began to keep computerized records in October 1969. This is an index for about 250 million vital records. You can find birth, christening, and marriage information.

You can print the information, or save it in GEDCOM or ASCII format. Unlike the AF, the IGI does not contain linked pedigrees. Record categories include:

- b = birth record
- c = christening record
- m = marriage
- d = death
- p = probate record
- n = census record.

Just because your ancestor wasn't a member of the LDS church, it doesn't mean he or she won't appear on the International Genealogical Index. One of your ancestor's other living relatives has possibly submitted the name to the IGI.

There is a second way names get into this huge genealogical database: through names extracted from original records, such as census or church records. This program has provisions for a system of checks and balances, so that two, sometimes three people view each record and enter the details independently into databases. Those entries are then cross-checked and verified.

Once you find an entry in the IGI for someone on your pedigree chart, copy the information. For those centers without microfiche reader/printers, you may use an IGI extraction form, complete with rows and labeled column headings, or if you are using the CD-ROM version, you can print a hard copy.

I'm not suggesting that we completely ignore the IGI and AF, rather that like any other record, in order to understand the surety and quality of the information, we have to understand why and how the information was gathered. The LDS Church accepts information which has been submitted by literally millions of church members. They check for EXACT duplicates, and if no exact duplicate is found, then the information is added. No source documents need to be referenced, and no one, other than the submitter themselves, verifies the information.

I strongly recommend that these records be used as they were intended. For instance, "IGI" stands for International Genealogical Index. It does not claim to be a genealogical record, rather it is an index to records. As an index, it points to other records, some of which may be source documents or others may or may not contain the names of source documents. Sometimes, just the fact that you have a date and a place will enable you to find the proper source record.

Correcting the IGI and the Ancestral File

Actually you cannot "correct" the IGI. It is an index to other records. As such, even if the events are not correct in the other records, the index must report them exactly as they appear in the other records, correct or not...

On the other hand, the Ancestral File can be corrected. Detailed instructions for doing so are found at your local Family History Center. You will, naturally, need to completely document your conclusions, and the easiest way to correct the information will be to contact the submitter and have them amend their original data.

I have found thousands of events, well-indexed in the IGI and Ancestral File. I have benefited

greatly from these sources which the LDS Church has so generously proffered. They have led me to many source documents. These can be a wonderful resource when we use them properly.

Queries

In general, these are "most-wanted" or "end-of-line" individuals. I have made NO effort to match these, so there may be duplicates. These are ALL from the 'Web page, because the mail version of this forum has been dormant. If you do not have access to E-mail, then I would be happy to forward your U.S. Mail response to any of these queries.

Riley Franklin born about 1800, location unknown. He lived in Limestone County, Alabama by 1828. Married a Josephine Bonapart (her surname unknown) about 1825. Riley Franklin and family moved to Johnson County, Arkansas by 1842. Census data from 1840 shows at least 6 children. Riley sells land in 1848 and no further record for him and wife. We believe James A. Franklin born 1828 at Limestone County, Alabama is a son who married Lou Ann Park in 1849 at Johnson County, Arkansas.

Also interested in a Preston Franklin in Talladega County, Alabama from 1839-1850.

Franklin descendants in my line have an old "pocketbook" with his name stamped on it. We have never figured out what the connection is. Brother to Riley?

Very interested in what, if any, was the relationship between Ashworth families of Pope, Crawford/Sebastian counties Arkansas? Benjamin H. Ashworth of Pope who took in a Franklin girl per the 1850 census. Joseph Ashworth also 1850 at Crawford County, Arkansas with a William Franklin. Are these Franklin's related to Riley and Josephine Franklin?

For more information on Riley Franklin and James A. Franklin, see webpage at:

http://members.aol.com/ydnar49/rileyfrk.htm

Randy Franklin < Ydnar49@aol.com>

I'm looking for the parents of Winfield Scott Franklin, born 3 July 1849 in Alabama; married Nancie Louise Griffin of Chickasaw County, Mississippi. She was born 27 Nov 1854 in Upshur County, Texas. The Franklins moved from Alabama to Chickasaw County, Mississippi. Winfield lived there until 1894, moved to Texas. Some say his father was George W. I have no info on this. His mother Mary Martin, have found no further info on her.

[&]quot;Norma" jlg1@flash.net

•		D 11	2.5	D 1	
Names I	ndex	Roswell Barker	25	Buck Ella Louvina	2
		William	21	Bunker	2
		Barnes	21	Eli H.	11
No Surname		Alevia	24		11
(?)			24	Burton	10
* *	16	Ann Amelia	23	William H.	18
Betsey Kalaniumi	8	Ann M.	24	Butler	2.4
		Clementina Louisa	23	Derius	24
Kauhi	8	Barnett		Jesse J.	11
Kealo	8	David	11	Byers	2.4
Rebecca	22	Gillard	11	Thomas Jefferson	24
		Barton	10		
\mathbf{A}		W.	18	C	
Adams		William	18		
	1.6	Batchelder		Cabbage	1.2
John	16	Sarah	9	Lucretia	13
Lettie	10	Batey		Calkens	2.5
Maria C.	13	William H.	12	Chloe M.	25
Adamson	1.6	Batson		Calvert	4.0
Maude M.	16	Anna L.	24	C. E.	19
Albert	22	Baumgardner		Cambell	
Minerva Elvira	23	Clara	15	Joan	17
Sarah A. M.	23	Bays		Shelton	17
Allen		Leucinda A.	12	Carnes	
	27	Beall		Sarah	31
Anderson		Samuel H.	21	Carr	
Charles	21, 22	Beard		Mary	27
Anthony			27	Casteel	
Grace G.	12	Behol		Mary A.	12
Appleby		Charles	24	Chalmers	
Atwood	23	Belknap		Sarah Ann	21
Armend		Lucinda	13	Chaney	
Sarah	18	Bernard		Newton J.	9
Arnett		Daniel	15	Chapman	
	27	Berry		-	26
Arnolds		Martha	22	John	19
Thomas	21	Biddeson		Laura B.	16
Asberry		Salem	21	Margaret Virginia	26
Isaiah	12	Bird		Chappel	
Asbridge			27	Ed. V.	9
Maude	18	Bloom		Clark	
Ashmore		David	23	Frances M.	10
Orlander	18	Bonapart		Mary	11
Ashworth		Josephine	39	Clay	
	39	Booth		William H.	15
Benjamin H.	39	Helen M.	9	Cleveland	
Joseph	39	Boyed		Mary	28
Ayers		Laura	17	Roger	28
Joseph	11	Boyer		Cochran	
•		Edwin	13	Elizebeth	22
D		Bradshaw	10	Cockran	
В			27	Eliza	22
Bair		Broadfoot	2,	Coffey	- -
Leah	23	William	22	J	28
Baldwin		Brown	22	Cohen	20
Sarah	10	George	17	James Wesley	25
Barbee		Harry Clifford	11	Combs	
Elizabeth	11	John W.	19	Winnie	18
Barber		Nancy	18	Conaway	10
		EEDII Vol 26		= 2	
			V000 /111		

John W.	23	Dearing		Ferland	
Condon			27	Jeremiah D.	25
Cordelia	24	Derdiger		Finks	
Richard	25	Paula	11	Frank	13
Conn		Derr		Firtin	
Anna	10	Bosten	13	William	16
Cook	_	Desbro		Fogle	
Anna A.	8	Jennie	15	Harry O.	23
Edwin	10	Dickey		Foster	
India	23		27		26
Peter	22	Dobbin		Fouch	
Coons		Francis M.	22	Amos	22
Mina	12	Dover		Francklyn	1.0
Cooper		Laura A.	9	George E.	10
Elizabeth	15	Duke	27		
Corbin			27	Franklin	
Harvey E.	11	Duncan	10		1.0
Cosgrove	1.0	Margaret B.	19	A. N.	18
Mary E.	16			Abraham	18, 21
Covington		\mathbf{E}		Airy	21
Edward	22			Albert	10
Cowens	o -	Easter	22	Albert H.	14
Joseph	25	William	22	Alexander	22
Cox	1.0	Eddelman	22	Alice	25 22
William	10	Gottlieb Hans	22	Althea C.	
Crawford	1.0	Eddleman	22	Amanda	9, 18
Sylvia	10	Gotlieb Henry	22	Amanda E.	17
Creech	1.0	Edwards	24	Ambrose P. G.	22, 24
John	10	Eurith A.	24	Ambrose Peregrine	
Crenshaw	27	Elie	9	Ammitta	15 25
Benjamin	27	Mary Elliott	9	Amy Anderson	15
John	27		32	Andrew	
Nancy	27	Loren	32	Andrew D.	16 9
Nicholas	27	Emison Charles	11		29 29
Tabitha	27	Endicut	11	Andrew R.	29
Crow	21		10	Ann Ann C.	21 22
Richard B.	21	Mary E. Ensor	10	Anna	20
Cryer	26	Charles	24	Anna Bell	16
Culler	26	Essex	24	Annie	15
Cully	8	Julian	22	Annie M.	23
Leroy	8	Essix	22	Annie O.	18
Cunningham	18	Julian	21	Arthur D.	14
J. C.	10	Evans	21	Arthur W.	13
		Joseph	24	Artridge	21
D		Ewing	24	Barbara	13
Daub		Harry Walter	36	Belinda Peirce	23
John	24	John Polk	36	Bella	10
Davenport	24	Eyeman	30	Belle	16
Roscoe H.	14	Elizabeth	15	Ben F.	17
Davidson	17	Liizaoetti	13		, 12, 17, 20, 21
Daniel	10			Benjamin B.	13
Davis	10	F		Benjamin H.	23
Billings T.	14	Farver		Benjamin J.	16
Ida S.	14	Robert T.	23	Benjamin N.	12
Dawn	17	Farvour	23	Bernard	28
William	12	Katie E.	23	Bert	28 16
Deale	12	Fergeson	23	Carrie E.	23
	21	J. D.	16	Carrie E. Catherine A.	23 22
James	<i>L</i> 1	J. D.	10	Camerine A.	22

Charles	10, 11, 22, 25	Eunis	25	Jay A.	10
Charles I.	12	Eva	16	Jennie	18
Charles J.	10	Everette E.	30	Jennie E.	14
Charles Meply	23	Fannie E.	23	Jennie L.	12
Charles S.	23	Fanny	16	Jeremiah	18
Charles W.	23, 29, 30	Ferris	18	Jesse Edward	26
Charley	19	Flora	14	Jesse L.	23
Charlie	9	Florence B.	23	Jesse W.	23
Charlotte A.	21	Frances	10	Jesse, Gov	28
Clara Lucille	31	Francis	23		, 12, 21, 25, 29, 30
Clarence	15	Francis M.	12	John Antone	8
Clarence E.	16	Frank	12	John B.	14
Clearence J.	18	Fred T.	16	John C.	10
Clinton	10	G. B.	8	John F.	14, 15
	9	G. B. G. W.			14, 13
Cora			13, 15	John H.	
Cora L.	26	Garrett	21	John M.	11
Cornelia	22	General	9	John R.	19
Curthbert V.	29	George	9, 11, 14, 21, 22	John T.	23
Cuthbert	29	George B.	18	John W.	19
Cynthia	14	George E.	10, 15, 21, 23	John Wesley	9, 10
D. W.	16	George R.	14, 17	John William	9
Daniel	12, 16	George W.	22, 23, 39	Johnson	25
Daniel C.	9	Gustaf	10	Joseph	16, 21, 30
Daniel L.	17	Harriet	9, 21	Josephine	23
David	8, 23	Harvey W.	23	Joshua	21, 23
David W.	23	Hattie L.	14	Joshua D.	22
Deadama	18	Henrietta	11, 16	Julia A.	17, 25
Dennis	10	Henry B.	10	Juliet Ann	22
Dianna	15	Henry D.	23	Kate	11
Dorcas	21	Henry F.	19	Katie V.	23
Dorcus Q.	29	Henry H.	29	L. A.	19
Dorcus Quick	29	Ida B.	16	L. P.	18
E. A.	14, 15	Ida May	12	Larkin	22
E. A. Edith	12, 31	Irene or Lorenia		Laura	16
Edith A.	23			Laura O.	15
		Irma May	32, 36		
Edward	11, 16	Irvin H.	9	Lawrence, Sr	28
Edward A.	14	Isaac J.	10	Leaher D.	23
Edward Grundy		Isaac N.	13	Lemi B.	8
Edwin	12	Isaac Newton	12	Lena	12, 31
Edwin S.	30	Isaac W.	13	Lewis	18
Elhanan H.	23	Isabella	21	Lewis C.	23, 24
Eliza	9	Isabilla	23	Lillian G.	24
Eliza J.	22	Israel N.	18	Lillie Irene	24
Eliza Jane	17, 21, 23	J. A.	16	Lizzie	8, 9
Eliza Mrs.	20	J. Albert	23	Lizzie J.	15
Elizabeth	9, 13, 14, 17, 18,	J. Benjamin	14	Logan	18
	19, 21, 25, 30	J. L.	18	Logan A.	18
Elizabeth Ann	12, 21	J. W.	18	Lottie A.	24
Elizabeth T.	20	Jabez	25	Lottie M.	14
Elizah	19	Jacob	16	Loui	13
Ella J.	20	James	14, 30	Louisa	9
Ellen	11, 13	James A.	15, 18, 39	Louisa E.	10
Elsie Belle	23	James C.	13, 16, 39	Louisa E. Louisa M.	25
	25 25		23		
Elvira S.		James J.		Lucas A.	13
Emerath V.	29	James or George		Lucinda	15, 18
Emma	9, 23	James S.	29	Lucy A.	15
Emma F.	14	James Smyth	29, 30	Ludern C.	14
Emma V.	23	James Steven	23	Lulu A.	14
Esom	12	Jarrett	22	Luther	24

M. B.	16	Phillip	25	Ulissius	13
M. N.	16	Preston	30, 39	Ulysses Henry	31
Malinda	32	R. H.	19	Vila Ann	24
Marand	18	R. W.	18	Virginia	19, 20
Margaret	19, 20	Rachel	10, 21, 22	W. C.	18
Margaret E.	10	Rachel A.	11	W. F.	19
Margarett	24	Rachel E.	10, 18	W. G.	24
Margeret Ann	22	Rebecca	18, 30	Walter A.	14
Margret J.	19	Rebecca E.	18	Walter James	2
Mariah	12	Rebeka	29	Wesley	29
Marshall D.	26	Rezin	22	William	9, 10, 12, 17, 21,
Martha E.	24	Rezin H.	24	vv IIII@III	22, 27, 39
Martha J.	12	Rhoda J.	29	William A.	9
Martha Jane	12	Rhoda Jane	29, 30	William Carter	10
	12, 15, 17, 19, 21,	Riley	39	William H.	13, 20, 24
Mary 11,		Robert	21		13, 20, 24
Ma A	22, 25			William Henry	
Mary A.	12, 24	Robert E. L.	24	William J.	24
Mary A. E.	24	Roger Thompson	27	William M.	10
Mary Ann	10, 11, 22, 24, 25	Rosa M.	14	William W.	15
Mary E.	14, 24	Rose Ann	24	Winfield Scott	39
Mary Edith	15	Rosetta	25	Z.	19
Mary Honara	11	Rosie Ellen	24	Zilas V.	19
Mary J.	9, 18	Rowena V.	11	Fulton	
Mary Jane	22	S.	18	Jesse	25
Mary P. F. C.	12	Sadie C.	15	Sally	25
Matilda	10	Sallie	11		
Matthias G.	29	Sally Ann	17	G	
Mattie	11, 13	Samuel	10, 22	G	
Melinda J.	29	Samuel W.	11	Gadney Or Gedne	y
Melvin	15	Saphrona	14	George I.	11
Mile	13	Sarah	11, 21	Gales	
Miltie	16	Sarah A.	11	Ephram A.	25
Mizzeller	9	Sarah C.	29	Scipio H.	9
Morgan H.	14	Sarah E.	10, 18, 20	Gamble	
Moses	9	Sarah Elizabeth D.	20	Josie	12
N. E.	12	Sarah Jane	11	Garvin	
N. M.	18	Sarah M.	17, 24	Samuel W.	14
N. S.	16	Serena J.	11	Gasaway	
Nancy	18	Servilda	15	Cordia B.	9
Nancy A.	10, 29	Sigmund	11	Gedney	
Nancy Ann	15	Sims Kelly	26	George I.	11
Nancy G.	19	Smith	12	Gibson	
Nancy J.	19, 24	Sophronia	25	James D.	11
Nathan	19, 24	Stephen E.	19	Glidden	
Nathan C.	24	Susan	10	Viola F.	26
Nathan E.	11, 24	Susan A.	24	Goad	20
			17	Goad	27
Nathan G.	8, 24 24	Susan M.	22	Gorsuch	21
Nathan H.		Susanna S.		Mary	21
Nattie M.	13	Sylas Y.	19 22	Gosnell	21
Nelly	17	Tabitha		Amos L.	22
Nettie	20	Thomas	11, 20, 22, 26		
Noah	17	Thomas A.	17	Jennette	23
Oina	18	Thomas Arthur	14	Gough	1.1
Oleyvet	29	Thomas B.	9, 24, 26	Thomas	11
Oleyvet S.	29	Thomas J.	25	Grace	4.0
Olivet	31	Thomas N.	24	Demiah	19
Ora M.	11	Thomas S.	14	Gravel	
Permelia	12	Thos. A.	17	Obadiah	18
Phebe	24	Timothy S.	12	Graves	
		EEDITIT 100	D 10		

	28	Hill		Murdic	13
Green	20	Jossie	9	Sadie	10
Anna	14	Hogan		Jones	10
Greenwood	14	Thomas M.	16	Edward	20
David H.	24	Hoherbauch	10	Harry	20
Grider	24	August	9	Matilda	9
William	19	Holbrook	,	Susan	9
Griffin	17	Sophia	21	Susan	,
Nancie Louise	39	Holebrock	21		
Grimes	37	John	17	K	
Amelia	24	Hondashelt	1 /	Kaufman Or Coffman	
Latitia	23	Henry	12	Henry	9
Martha E.	24	Hooper	12	Kegel	
Grosnickle	21	Поорег	28	Carrie	15
Edna	23	John Cleveland	28	Keller	10
Dana	23	Hopkins	20	Ada F.	11
		Mary	21	Susan	9
H		Hord		Kiler	
Hadnot		11014	27	Daniel	23
L. W.	20	Horn	2,	Heilda L.	24
Haines		William	21	Kimbal	
George W.	23	Houck		William P.	14
Maggie J.	23	A. W.	16	King	
Hall		Hough	10	Sarah	16
Greensway	19	Ida V.	13	Kinmon	
Hambleton		Howard		Lizzie	11
Margaret J.	18	Dorzina	15	Kirk	
Hardy		William	21	Mary	19
Sarah	22	Howe		Kitzmiller	
Harris		Eliza	14	Hiram	22
Josephine	25	Hughs		Mary Cathrine	23
Harrison		John	9	Kruse	
Nancy E.	12	Huntermaster		Antony	15
Hart		Mary Sophia I.	15	Kuhlig	
John	17	2 1		Susan	9
Harvey		I		Kyler	
Bonnie E.	15	1		Mary Elizabeth	24
Hawkins		Impey			
N. M.	18	Eliza	21	L	
Hawn					
Edward	24	J		Landreth	_
Hayes				Mary	9
Ira R.	20	Jackson		Lane	
Hazlett			27	Cora A.	16
Mary E.	14	Dinsmore	18	Laswell	
Hellen		Martha E.	18	Elizabeth	12
George Edward	24	Jeffreys		Leister	2.4
Hellyer		Willie E.	17	Jacob H.	24
J. B.	13	Jenkins	22	Lieb	1.0
Henderson		Edgar S.	23	John	13
J. G.	15	Johnes	26	Ligon	1.0
Herring			26	Susan T.	18
Virinda C.	12	Johns	2.1	Lindsay	22
Hickman		Richard	21	Luth	23
Permelia	12	Johnson	20	Lindsey	2.4
Higdon		Eugene W.	20	Lewis	24
Elizabeth E.	17	Maria Ann	23	Lord	1.0
Higgins		Maria C.	21	Ada	12
John A.	20	Mary Luella	9	Love	

	27	James	18	NI	
Eddie B.	11	McKeel	10	N	
Lovell	11	Eliza	20	Neal	
John R.	23	Medley	20	Solomon	23
Lowrey	23	Mary Or Mattie	10	Nepean	
Emma	10	Meeker	10	William	20
Ludden	10	Wicekei	26	Nidy	
Sarah	21	Meier	20	Frank	11
Luns		Fred W.	14	Sarena J.	11
Robert B.	12	Menser	1.	William	11
Luscaleete	12	William W.	18	Noe	
Elizabeth Ann	22	Merning Or Joycelin	10	Kate B.	13
Lutz		Eveline	13	Norman	
Jennie L.	25	Merrett		Henrietta	21
Lux		William	11	Margaret Ann	22
Rachel	25	Merritt		Noys	
Rachel R.	21	Sarah E.	11	Joseph D.	25
Lynch		Michalsohn		Nusbaum	
P. U.	16	Isaac	10	Margaret	23
		Miles		Mary E.	23
N /I		M. F.	17		
M		Miller		0	
Magee		Charles M.	26		
Phillip	26	Henry	10	O'Neal	22
Manning		Minnie	15	Emma	22
James H.	10	Milligan		Ogilvie G. W.	12
Marshall		C. B.	18	Ohaver	12
William G.	15	Mills		Gena	12
Martin		Anna Preston	14	Olstad	12
Jennie Mrs.	10	Mitchell		Elena	10
Mary	39		27	Oram	10
Matthews		Eva	11		16
William	25	W. A.	18	May	10
Maupin		Mockmore			
	27	Charles M.	15	P	
Mayer		Moody		Pace	
Hanna	10	Louisa	22	1 400	27
McAtee		Moore		Palm	2,
Sarah A.	17	Elijah	30	Peter	11
Sarah Ann	17	Emily Jane	30	Park	
McCall		Nellie	16	Lou Ann	39
Cora Belle	14	Moran		Parker	
McClelen	_	Agnes	19	A. M.	16
Ida	9	Morris		Richard D.	18
McClure		Jemima	26	Parlett	_
William A.	11	Munay		Zachariah	22
McCooper		Adie	23	Parrish	
William	10	Munday			27
McCraw	0		27	Patridge	
Amanda	9	Munson		Jacob	10
McCuen	10	Pearle	32	Peacock	
Samuel J.	12	Murnane		Mary D.	22
McCumber	1.4	Mary	10	Pearson	
Ella May	14	Murphy	1.4	Eliza A.	17
McFarland	2	George S.	14	Peck	
Becca Jane	2	Murray	1.0	Nora	16
McGregor	10	Lizzie A.	10	Perrine	
Alfred M.	18	Myers Or Rudesill	10	Hugh E.	12
McGrigor		Mollie A. E.	12	=	

Peterson		Roop		Sarah Ann	24
John	20	Sarah E.	24	Simmonds	
Phelphs		Root		Edward	21
Martha A.	19	George W.	11	Sisk	
Phipps		Rouse		Minnie B.	18
Roger	21	Adda A.	16	N. R.	18
Pickett		Lucinda	12	Skidmore	
Annei D.	24	Royer		Mary E.	23
Isabella L.	24	Ida M.	24	Slemmons	
Piegors		Rush		Milly T.	27
Emma M.	14	Sarah	29	Smith	
Porter		Russell		Alice L.	14
Emritta	22	Elizabeth	25	George T.	9
Potter		Ryker		Joseph F.	21
George B.	12	J. C.	17	M. Å.	19
Proctor				Mary	14, 19
James Edwin	15	C		Mary Ann	10
Pruitt		\mathbf{S}		Michael	22
Mary	12	Samuel		Snyder	
3		Sarah H.	10	Augusta	15
0		Sanders		Southard	
Q		Mary E.	15	Emely O.	19
Quick		Schenk		M. E.	18
Mildred	29	Elin	10	Nancy H.	18
Milla	29	Searles		Stair	10
		George W.	14	Elizabeth Jane	30
D		Sears		Stanfield	
R		Mary F.	13	S. T.	14
Reed		Seaver		Stanley	
Alexander	17	Adda Marion	14	Elizabeth	16
Reeves		Segafoose		Steiner	10
Charles Edward	15	Elizabeth	23	John P.	23
Reynolds		Sellman		Stem	25
Lotitia	21	Walter T.	23	Harry A.	24
Stephen	13	Setzer		Stephen	2.
Rhea		Phoebe E.	17	Melinda N.	16
Robert K.	16	Shaw		Stevens	10
Rice		John	30	Flora E.	14
Annie	9	Nancy	30	Stevenson	
James F.	14	Shelby		Silas	15
Richardson		John D.	9	Story	10
Grace Adell	16	Shepherd		Mearmar B.	19
Nancy	19	Mary Ann	11	Mountain D.	17
Nathaniel	21	Shigley		700	
Ridden		Elizabeth J.	30	T	
Nancy	19	George	31	Tabb	
Riggs		Jacob	31	Birdie	19
Laura Minerva	14	James	30	Tacket	
Rigler		James Newton, Col.	30	Sarah	10
Samuel	24	Lizzie	31	Teague	
Robinson		Luigi	31	Dollie L.	18
Barton	15	Mary Elizabeth	30, 31	Teeter	
Robison		Rhoda Jane (franklin)	30	Nancy M.	14
Mary A.	13	Sarah Carnes	31	Telshaw	1.
Rodgers		Shipley		John	15
James A.	9	Rachael	24	Ten Broeck	-0
Romine		Sarah E.	23	Helena Louisa	20
Benjamin F.	10	Shue		Thompkins	20
Stella M.	10	John A.	24	Michael	23

Elizabeth	Thompson			26	Н	
J.M. 19		27	Alice V.			
Mildred William 27 Wesh William 21 William 27 Aaron 21 F. J. 14 Maude 14 Go. D. 18 Robert M. 25 William 30 Lacla Francis 8 William 30 Lacla Francis 8 Fannie B. 10 Abraham L. 24 Bond County 9 Fannie B. 10 Abraham L. 24 Bond County 9 Jeanette 20 Boone County 9 Jeanette 20 Calcount County 9 Uton Recee 10 Clark County 9 Upton Wilson 17 Clark County 9 Lavinia 12 Monder 18 Evancto Villey Namery 18 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Hawaii</td> <td>_</td>					Hawaii	_
William						8
Tidmarsh F. J. 14 Maude 14 Idaho Todd Whitehouse Whitehouse Wilbur Maude 17 Idaho County 8 Robert M. 25 Mingham County 8 Milliam 30 Laela Francis Milliams Alexander County 9 Jeanette 20 Boone County 9 Jeanette 20 Boone County 9 Garket County 9 Jeanette 20 Boone County 10 Jeanette 20 Boone County 10 Jeanette 20 Boone County 11 Jeanette 20 Jeanette 20 Boone County 11 Jeanette 20 Jean				21		
F. J.		27		21	Ţ	
Todd		1.4		14	_	
O. D.		17		17		
Trenary Wilbur William So William So Laela Francis Williams So Laela Francis So Laela		10		25		
William		10		23		
Tucker		20		0		8
Fannie B.		30		٥		
Jeanette		10		24	_	
U	rannie B.	10			Bond County	
V					Boone County	
Upton	IJ				Calhoun County	9
Lavinia				10	Clark County	9
Coles County 10		10			Clay County	9
Nancy 18		12	-			10
V		1.0				10
V	Elizabeth	18		18		
V						odist
Vanderpoorten	\mathbf{V}			24		
Second County 1	•					
Vanover				17		
Hezakiah C. 12 Wooldrige Mary E. 18 Gallatin County 11		12				
Vick				25		
Mary E		12	Wooldrige			
William W. 10			Mary E.	18		
W Wright Jonathan Jonathan Jonathan Rebeca 19 Jackson County 12 Jackson County 13 Jackson County 14 Jackson County 13 Jackson County 14 Jackson County <td>John W.</td> <td>17</td> <td>Workman</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	John W.	17	Workman			
Wade Jonathan 19 Jackson County 12 Mary Elizabeth 14 Rebeca 22 Jasper County 12 Mary Elizabeth 14 William J. 14 Jersey County 12 Waldon Waldon Kane County 13 Martha J. 10 Young Tazewell County 13 James A. 12 Joshua D. 24 Indiana Wall Rosie E. 24 Parke County 13 Preston 19 William Thomas 23 Tippecanoe County 30 Walmsley Washington Iowa Wabash County 30 Ward Z Appanoose County 14 Ware Amanda 14 Black Hawk County 14 Washington Elizabeth 13 Places Index Appanoose County 14 Waters Arnold 21 Face Index Henry County 14 Waters Arnold 21 Henry County 15 </td <td></td> <td></td> <td>William W.</td> <td>10</td> <td></td> <td></td>			William W.	10		
Vade	W		Wright			
Mary Elizabeth 14 Nancy William J. 14 Jersey County Johnson County 12 Johnson County 12 Johnson County 12 Johnson County 13 Kane County 13 Kane County 13 Knox County 13 Knox County 13 Knox County 13 Knox County 13 Indiana Wall Young James A. 12 Joshua D. 24 Parke County 13 Indiana Wall Rosie E. 24 Parke County 13 Tippecanoe County 30 Washington Twp 31 Washington Twp 31 Washington Twp 31 Washington Twp 31 Washington Lowa Elizabeth J. 21 Zwanziger Amanda Amanda 14 Black Hawk County 14 Black Hawk County 14 Black Hawk County 14 Bremer County 14 Henry County 15 Mills County <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>19</td> <td></td> <td></td>				19		
Nancy 19			Rebeca	22		
Waldon Martha J. Walker James A. Wall Preston Preston Sarah Sarah Elizabeth Wall Washington Elizabeth J. Waters Arnold Peter Arnold Arnold			William J.	14		
Martha J. 10 Y Knox County 13 Walker Young Tazewell County 13 Walker Young Indiana Preston 19 William Thomas 23 Tippecanoe County 30 Walmsley Ward Z Z Wanziger Amanda 14 Black Hawk County 14 William 9 Places Index Henry County 14 Waters Arnold 21 Peter 22 A Indiana Washington Twp 31 Water Amanda 14 Black Hawk County 14 Waters Arnold 21 Peter 22 A Henry County 14 Waugh Louvina 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39 Windiana Tazewell County 13 Washington 13 Tippecanoe County 13 Washington Washington Twp 31 Washington 14 Black Hawk County 14 Boone County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 15 Mills County 15 Muscatine County 15 Muscatine County 15 Scott County 15 Scott County 15	•	19				
Walker James A. Voung James A. Voung Joshua D. Rosie E. Voung Preston 19 William Thomas Vall Parke County Vashington Twp Elizabeth Vare William Washington Elizabeth J. Waters Arnold Peter Arnold Peter Arnold Peter 22 Waugh Louvina Vall Alabama Louvina Weller William H. Voung Joshua D. Rosie E. Vall Indiana Parke County Vashington Vashington Vashington Blowa Appanoose County 13 Places Index Amanda Amanda Places Index Amonto Appanoose County Id Black Hawk County Bremer County Id Henry County Id Humboldt County Id Humboldt County Id Hontgomery Id Hontgome			V			
James A. 12 Joshua D. 24 Indiana Wall Rosie E. 24 Parke County 13 Preston 19 William Thomas 23 Tippecanoe County 30 Washington Twp 31 Ware Z Iowa William Sarah 21 Zwanziger Appanoose County 14 William 9 Washington Black Hawk County 14 Waters Arnold 21 Peter 22 A Indiana Ware 2 Alabama I4 Black Hawk County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 15 Mills County 15 Wolter Arkansas Scott County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39 Walkiam D. Parke County 12 Washington Washington 14 Wabash County 14 Black Hawk County 14 Black Hawk County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 15 Montgomery County 15 Wolter Arkansas Scott County 15 Scott County 15 Scott County 15 Scott County 15		10	Y			
Wall Rosie E. 24 Parke County 13 Preston 19 William Thomas 23 Tippecanoe County 30 Walmsley Washington Twp 31 Ward Elizabeth 21 Zwanziger Appanoose County 14 William 9 Hare County 14 Washington Elizabeth J. 13 Places Index Aranold 21 Peter 22 A Henry County 14 Waugh Louvina 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Walbash County 15 Wand Carawford County 39 Plymouth County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 Walliam H. 24 Crawford County 39 Washington 15 Washington 21 Places Index Montgomery County 15 Waters 30 Washington 42 Parke County 13 Washington 50 Washington 42 Appanoose County 14 Black Hawk County 14 Boone County 14 Boone County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 14 Humboldt County 15 Montgomery County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 Scott County 15			Young			13
Preston Publisher Preston Preston Publisher Preston Publisher Papanoose County Permer County Permer County Peter Peter Preston Preston Publisher Papanoose County Papanoose County Peter Boone County Peter Publisher Peter Peter Papanoose County Peter Preston Papanoose County Peter Popanoose County Papanoose County Peter Popanoose County Papanoose County Peter Popanoose County Papanoose County Peter Popanoose County Peter Popanoose County Papanoose County Papanoose County Peter Popanoose County Papanoose County Papanoose County Papanoose County Papanoose County Peter Popanoose County Papanoose County Peter Popanoose County Papanoose County Papanoos		12	Joshua D.	24		1.0
Walmsley Sarah Sar			Rosie E.	24		
Sarah Ward Elizabeth 21 Zwanziger Amanda Ware William Washington Elizabeth J. Waters Arnold Peter Arnold Peter Auagh Louvina Limestone County Limestone County Weller William H. 22 Wanziger Amanda 14 Black Hawk County Bremer County 14 Boone County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 15 Montgomery County 15 Scott County 16 Scott County 17 Scott County 18 Scott County 19 Scott Coun		19	William Thomas	23		
Ward Elizabeth 21 Zwanziger Appanoose County 13 Ware Amanda 14 Black Hawk County 14 Boone County 14 Bremer County 15 Bremer County 16 Bremer County 17 Bremer County 18 Bremer County 19 Bremer C						
Elizabeth Ware Amanda Amanda Amanda Amanda Amanda Amanda Black Hawk County Boone County Bremer County Cherokee County Henry County Henry County Henry County Humboldt County Humboldt County Louvina Amanda Places Index Appanoose County 14 Black Hawk County 14 Bremer County 14 Cherokee County Henry County 14 Henry County 15 Mills County 15 Montgomery County 15 Weller Arkansas Weller Arkansas Weller Arkansas Welliam H. 24 Crawford County 39 Plymouth County 15 Scott County 15 Scott County 15	Sarah	22	7			30
Ware Amanda 14 Black Hawk County 14 Boone County 14 Bremer County 14 Bremer County 14 Cherokee County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 14 Humboldt County 15 Waugh 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Welborn 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 Scott County 15 Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39 Plymouth County 15 Scott County	Ward		\boldsymbol{L}			
William 9 Washington Elizabeth J. 13 Places Index Boone County 14 Cherokee County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 14 Humboldt County 14 Johnson County 15 Waugh 12 Louvina 12 Welborn 12 Welborn 15 Z8 Talladega County 39 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39 William H. 39 William H. 39 William H. 39 William H. 39 Winder Annanda 19 Wener Shanda 19 Wener Show 14 Henry County 14 Henry	Elizabeth	21	Zwanziger			
Washington Elizabeth J. Waters Arnold Peter Waugh Louvina Welborn 28 Talladega County Talladega County Weller William H. Pares Index Bremer County Henry County 14 Henry County 14 Humboldt County 15 Humboldt County 15 Montgomery County 15 Muscatine County 15 Arkansas Scott County 15 S	Ware		•	14		
Waters Places Index Cherokee County 14 Waters Henry County 14 Arnold 21 Humboldt County 14 Peter 22 A Johnson County 15 Waugh Louvina 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Welborn 28 Talladega County 39 Muscatine County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39	William	9				
Waters Arnold Peter Waugh Louvina Welborn Weller William H. Pater ITACES THUEX Henry County Humboldt County 14 Humboldt County 15 Humboldt County 15 Mills County 15 Mills County 15 Montgomery County 15 Muscatine County 15 Arkansas Scott County 15 Scott	Washington				2	
Arnold Peter 21	Elizabeth J.	13	Places Index			
Peter 22 A Johnson County 15 Waugh Mills County 15 Louvina 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Welborn Limestone County 39 Muscatine County 15 28 Talladega County 39 Plymouth County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39	Waters		1 laces flidex			
Waugh Louvina 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Welborn Limestone County 28 Talladega County Weller William H. 24 Crawford County 39 Muscatine County 15 Montgomery County 15 Montgomery County 15 Scott County 15 Scott County 15	Arnold	21				
Waugh Louvina 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Welborn Limestone County 39 Muscatine County 15 28 Talladega County 39 Plymouth County 15 Weller Arkansas William H. 24 Crawford County 39	Peter	22	A		Johnson County	
Louvina 12 Alabama Montgomery County 15 Welborn Limestone County 39 Muscatine County 15 28 Talladega County 39 Plymouth County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39			A			
Welborn Limestone County 39 Muscatine County 15 28 Talladega County 39 Plymouth County 15 Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39		12	Alabama		Montgomery County	15
Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39 Plymouth County 15 Scott County 15	Welborn		Limestone County	39	Muscatine County	15
Weller Arkansas Scott County 15 William H. 24 Crawford County 39		28			Plymouth County	
William H. 24 Crawford County 39	Weller					
		24		39	-	
	Wells					

K		Harford County	25	\mathbf{V}	
Kansas		Joppa		Virginia	
Allen County	16	St. Johns Par	rish	Albemarle County	27, 28
Cherokee County	16	Prof	testant	Louisa County	27, 20
Coffey County	16	Epis	scopal	Louisa County	27
Crawford County	16	25			
Douglas County	16	Saint Marys County	25		
Franklin County	16	Washington County			
Johnson County	16	Hagerstown			
Neosho County	16	Saint Pauls N	1 ethodist		
Kentucky		Epis	scopal		
Barren County	27		25		
Boone County	17	Massachusetts			
Christian County	17	Berkshire County			
Clark County	17	Williamstown	25		
Grant County	17	Essex County			
Green County	17	Salem	25		
Hardin County	17	Franklin			
Harrison County	17	Montague	25		
Hickman County	17	Hampshire County			
Hopkins County	18	Northampton	25		
Lawrence County	19	Michigan			
Letcher County	19	Kalamazoo County	26		
Madison County	19	Mississippi			
Marshall County	19	Chickasaw County	39		
Mason County	19	Missouri			
Metcalfe County	19, 27	Greene County	_		
Monroe County	19	Springfield	2		
Shelby County	19				
_		N			
L		Nebraska			
Louisiana		Hamilton County			
	20	Aurora	32		
Rapides Parish		Perkins County	-		
Alexandria	20	Grant Village	31		
Saint Tammany Parish	26	North Carolina			
-		Richland County	26		
M		Surry County	28		
Maine		0			
Cumberland County	20				
Portland	20	Ohio	20.01		
York County	20	Ross County	29, 31		
Biddeford	20	Oklahoma	2		
Maryland Anne Arundel County		Noble	2 2		
Saint James Parish	21	Norman	2		
Baltimore	21				
Baltimore (City)	21	\mathbf{S}			
English Evangelica	1	South Carolina			
Luthern Churc		Chester County	26		
First Methodist	n 22		_0		
Episcopal Chu	ırch	Т			
Episcopui Ciiu	22	T			
St. Johns Parish	22	Texas			
Carroll County	22	Upshur County	39		
Frederick County	25				